) oM 971

‘building
‘on strong
foundations

321GLP
A15 5/07720
NIES

A
1 2
COMPA

E HOA

6.
10
HOUSE




what we do

Ashtead is a global leader in the equipment
rental industry.

We provide all types of equipment in a wide
variety of scenarios, from hand held tools to aerial
platforms to complete on-site contractor villages.
We prowvide solutions and systems that support
our customers and pride ourselves in delivering
excellent levels of service and care We have
nationwide networks in the US and UK

It is the quality of our people which enables us
to deliver the excellence demanded by our vared
customer base
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our performance

Profit of £5m (2009: £87m) in difficult market conditions

Strong full year EBITDA margin of 30.5% (2009: 33.2%)

Encouraging early signs of improvement in @4, particularly in the US
£191m (2009: £157m) of cash generated from operations in the year

Net debt reduced to £829m (2009: £1,036m); net debt to EBITDA
leverage of 3.1 times

$1.3bn ABL facility refinanced successfully in the year providing:

- long average debt maturity of five years at year end

- with $537m of year end availability, all our debt continues to
be effectively covenant free

@® Final dividend of 2.0p (2009: 1.675p) per share proposed making
2.9p for the year (2009: 2.575p)

The frgures for 2008, 2009 and 2010 include as revenue the proceeds generated from the sale of used rental equipment following the adoption
of the amendment ta IAS 16 - Property, plant and equipment {and consequent amendment toIAS 7 — Statement of cash flows) included within
the 2008 'tmprovements to IFRSs’ Prior years have not been restated

Underlying revenue, profit and earnings per share are stated before exceptional items, amortisation of acquired intangibles and non-cash fair value
remeasuremnents of embedded denvatives inlong-term debt The defintion of exceptional items 1s set out in note 1 to the financial statements
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our group
at a glance

Ashtead Group provides equipment that lifts, powers, generates, moves, digs, supports,
scrubs, pumps, directs, ventilates — whatever the job needs.

UK: 105

A-Plant r:L;oo

Employees

Revenues
The second largest £2m
equipment rentalt Profits
company with 105 stores
throughout England, 0_7%
Scotland and Wales Return on investment®

what we do

We rent equipment on flexible terms so that our custorners
can focus on what they do best rather than maintaining
and servicing equipment they may use only perodically
We make sure the equipment is there when it needs to be
and 1s ready to work immediately and efficiently

Facilitating
fil-out and
ongoing
maintenance for
office blocks

Replacing
wom out
sawage

infrastructure

Desligning and
implementing
troffic
management
systems

£162m

Our stores are located where they are most required and
we guarantee our service Whether customers need a small
hand held tool or the largest aenal work platform, our staff
are there, abie and willing, to help our customers ensure the
job gets done

Providing an

on-site hire depot
and contractors’
village for a
long-tern hospital
construction
On-site projact
tool hire and
maintenance for
new residential
construction site
Advising on
health and
satety aspects
of equipment In
use af new

sports stadium




uUsS:
Sunbelt

393

No of stores

5,300

Employees
$1,081Im
Revenues
The second largest s 11 7m
equipment rental Profits

business in the US
with 393 stores in
35 US states

5.9%

Return on investment*

* Return on investment is defined as underlying operating profit divided by the weighted average cost of capital employed {shareholders funds plus net debt and net
tax babisties, minus/plus the pension fund surplus/deficit and less other financial assets — denvatives)

Equipment types

A broad range of construction and industrial equipment
including earth moving equipment, aenal work platforms,
high reach forklifts and other matenals handling units,
smaller tools, pumps, power generation, portable site
accommodation, scaffolding, fermwork and falsework,

and temporary traffic management equipment

Providing
equipment for
facilities
management at
new shopping
centre complex

Tracking our
equipment for
customers using
mablle tracking
systems.

Customer base

Construction mdustry, faclities management, disaster relief
agencies, sport and music event organisers, governments,
local authorsties, hormeowners

Renting
generators,
powered gcceass
equipment, lighting
and temporary
accommodation
units for an outdoor
music festival

Designing.
erecling and
dismantiing
scaftolding
systoms.
Drying out
and cleaning up
after a flash flood
at an Industrial
warehouse
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chairman’s statement

Chris Cole,
Chairman

It has been a tough year for our industry but
nevertheless, | am pleased to report that the
actions we took before the recession became
entrenched and the tight business we have
run during the past year, mean that we are
one of very few large rental companies to
have remained profitable.

This has taken a lot of hard work from all our staff and some difficuit
decisions but we have continued to deliver good EBITDA margins
even with significantly lower construction industry volumes The
diversification of our service offering has, to some extent, acted as

a buffer to the sharp decline in new construction We have maintained
our operational performance in ine with our expectations and believe
we have performed well relative to both our UK and US peers, which
1s testament to the high-quality service we offer our customers

We have also focused this year on positioning the Group to take full
advantage of the upturn when it comes

Trading

Our results reflect the prevailing market conditions with rental revenues
declining in Sunbelt by 25% to $982m and in A-Plant by 21% to £152m
Our underlying profit before taxation was £5m compared with £87m n
2009 and underlying revenue was £837m (2009 £11bn) The nghtsizing
measures we took In winter 2008/9 and our ongoing efforts to maximise
productivity meant that operating costs before depreciation and used
equipment sold were down 23% at Sunbelt and 16% at A-Plant Asa
result, our EBITDA margin rernamed strong at 31% (2009 33%)
Underlying earnings per share for the year were 0 2p {2009 11 9p)

We also managed the business so as to maximise cash generation with
£191m generated in the year, 93% of which was applied to reduce
outstanding debt with £13m of dwvidends paid to shareholders

Strategy

Owr strategy has always been to manage the business prudently through
the economic cycles to which our industry 1s subject While the most
recent downward phase of the cycle has been deeper than most could
have imagined, we have continued to practrse the tried and tested
management principles that we have learned and which have enabled
Ashtead to expand securely in good markets and to trade well relative

to our peers when markets are weaker

The early actions we took more than a year ago to reduce fleet size

when the recession was Just beginning allowed us to continue to trade
profitably while positioning us to expand once agatn when the upturn
comes The reduction i fleet and also, sadly, in manpower, has not been
to the detriment of our ability to serve all our mam markets We have
maintained the store infrastructure required to offer a nationwide service
in both the UK and also broadly the US and to continue to be able to
respond with the speed and efficency for which we are known

As expected, some of our smaller competitors less well financed than
ourselves have not survived the recession and that, combined with the
superior customer service we can deliver, has resulted in us gaining market
share in both the US and the UK We provide more detad on pages 12

and 13 of this report on how our strategy changes over the phases of the
economic cycle and where we are now n this process

Funding

A critical backbone to our strong operational performance 1s our balance
sheet strength Inrecent years we have devoted considerable effort to
ensuring that our financial structure, as well as our business model, 15
suited to our cydical business This focus has paid off in the past year

as, unlike many others, we have not had to manage our operations under
balance sheet stress

Our debt facilities continue to be commutted for the long term, with

an average remaming maturity of frve years This year we extended the
maturity of a $13bn tranche of our senior debt by more than two years
until Novernber 2013 Based on February 2010 asset values, availability
at 30 April was $537m and remains well above $150m, the level at which
the entire debt package 1s covenant free Therefore, we continue to enjoy
significant headroom on our debt package, providing the flexibility and




" In preparation for the next phase
of the cycle, we have started a fleet
reinvestment programme, funded
from operating cash flow.” .....

strength to enable our businesses to succeed and prosper in the years
ahead [t also means that we have the funding in place to capitalise on
the opportunities which will arise in future We are well prepared and
ready to resume growth when trading conditions change

Dividend

Despite our reduced profitability, in ight of our strong cash generation the
Board is recommending a final dnadend of 2 Op per share (2009 1675p)
making 2 9p for the year (2009 2 575p) Payment of the 2009/10
dividend wll cost £14 5m (2009 £12 8m) and, whilst not covered by
2009/10 earmings, 15 In the Board's view justifiable given the Group's very
strong cash generation |f the proposed final dividend s approved at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, 1t will be pard on 10 September
2010 to shareholders on the register on 20 August 2010 Mowving forward,
the Board will aim to provide a progressive dividend having regard to
both profit and cash generation, whilst seeking to keep to levels that

are sustamable over the cycle

Employees

As the recession took hold and we reduced our cost base there was
unfortunately the need to reduce our employee numbers Being forced

to make cuts to the workforce was hard for everyone involved | and my
management colleagues are therefore very grateful for the loyalty and
canscientious hard work of the Ashtead team n both the US and the UK
and the substantial commitment from our staff this year A difficult job s
made easter by knowing the quality and dedication of the team providing
the support It 1s a testament to our team that we have remamed focused
on servicing the customer through all the uncertainty

Board

There were no changes in the composition of the Board during the year
but Gary tceton will be standing down at the 2010 Annual Generat
Meeting having completed two full terms as a non-executive director

| would like to recard our gratitude to Gary for his contribution

to the Board's deliberations over the last six years and for his work
since 2007 as chairman of the Remuneration Commuittee A separate
announcement regarding Gary's successor will be made in due course

Outlook

Fleet on rent and revenue continued to be encouraging in both our
markets during May, supporting our view that the winter of 2010 was
the bottomn of the cydle

In the US we continue to believe that we will see stabilisation in markets
in the current year with improving trends through 2011 In the UK, whilst
current markets are also stabiising, uncertainty around the impact of
public sector spending cuts makes the medium term less certam

In preparatian for the next phase of the cycle, we have started a fleet
reinvestment programme, funded frorm operating cash flow Our well-
structured debt facility means that we can react quickty if markets differ
materially from those we anticipate

Having strengthened our market position in the year just ended and with
the flexibility provided by our strong balance sheet, the Board believes
that the Group is well positioned for the future

Chris Cole
16 June 2010

“C
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business and financial review
infroduction

Right

Geoff Drabble,
Chief executive
Far right

lan Robson,
Fiance director

Ashtead 1s the second largest equipment rental group in the world with our operations
split between the US where we operate as Sunbelt Rentals or Sunbelt and in the UK
where we trade as A-Plant We provide rental equipment in all manner of scenanos and
across a wide variety of industries We aim to create a highly flexible business model
both In terms of the overall speed of responsiveness to market conditions and the variety
of markets we serve

The largest end market for our services continues to be new-build, non-residential
construction but we also serve a wide range of other markets such as facilities
management, repair and renewal, disaster relief, event management and traffic control,
as well as also being involved in residential construction This diversification serves to
limrt our exposure to a downturn n any one market However, given the extent of the
recent recession, we have still been substantially impacted over the last two years

We recognise the cyclical nature of the construction markets we serve and have always
managed the business accordingly In the past year this has enabled us to deliver good
operational performance in a difficult climate relative to both our US and UK peers
Over the next few pages we set out our pnnapal building blocks for growth, our people,
our infrastructure, our fleet and our balance sheet strength We also demonstrate the
strategic management principles n place during each phase of the economic cycle and
where we consider ourselves to be within the current cycle




our building blocks for growth

our
1 people
our

infrastructure

our
3 fleet

our balance
sheet strength

2

4
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Tour

people

We are a service business and we differentiate ourselves by the strength of our
service offering Central to our service offering are our people We have a highly
experienced team which numbered 7,200 at 30 April 2010

The nature of our business is such that we require skilled individuals working
within a highly devolved structure, in small focused teams Local delivery of

a consistent service offering 1s central to our business model We take pride

in the fact that we have a tugh proportion of long-serving staff and that many
of our senior staff have been able to work their way up the orgarisation from
shop fleor to senior management

We work hard, whatever the econermc cimate, to preserve these cultural
strengths and maintain what we consider to be a key competitive advantage




Our network of rental stores is one of the largest in
the industry and enables us to provide nationwide
coverage in the UK and now across most of the US
While we have taken steps to rightsize the business
during the recession, we believe we have mantained
the local infrastructure and network required to retain
and enhance our leading position in both our markets
We have retained our ability to access a wide range
of geographies at speed with the required equipment
and accompanying operational expertise We expect
to use this network to once agan deliver good
growth in our profits and strong returns when the
recovery begins

pur
infra-

stfructure

UK: A-Plant US: Sunbelt
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Oour

Fleet composition by product category

Our very broad fleet mix ranges from large earth mowving vehicles,
aenal work platforms, power generation and scaffolding to smaller
equipment types which offer the potential for higher returns

This enables us to ensure a balanced mix of business throughout
the cycle, hence allowing us to mitigate the extremes of particular
sectors For example, we are currently experiencing greatest demand
from government and infrastructure projects where stimulus
spending is sustaimng actwity levels Traditionally, our strength

i1s 11 sraller local commercial and residential projects and we are
focused on retaining this exposure as we believe this segment

of the market will recover first

Despite the recession, we have deliberately maintained the overall
quality of our fleet and have not aged it as much as in previous
downward cycles The fleet is therefare still in good shape and

we expect to be able quickly to reduce fleet age and expand it

as economies recover This recession, we have also been able to
take advantage of the opportunity created by distressed asset
sales to acquire a small amount of nearly new equipment at
advantageous prices

fleel




balance
sheet

strength

We maintain a conservative balance sheet structure throughout the economic
cycle, pacing our investment in the good years to ensure we hold leverage
within our two to three times net debt to EBITDA target leverage range. During
the most recent cycle, our balance sheet has been reinforced by the manner in
which we lowered investment levels rapdly from 2008 to ensure we generated
significant free cash flow and lowered net debt throughout the recession

In Novernber 2009 we took advantage of our strong operational performance
and relatively low leverage to extend the matunty of $13bn of our senior debt
until November 2013 We decided last summer to undertake this refinancing
nearly a year before it was required in order to gain certanty over the committed
term, size and cost of our senior debt facility — both so that we were well
positioned to invest and take advantage when markets recovered and also

to provide protection in the event that recovery was delayed

Our caprtal structure therefore has, by design, the flexibiity and strength required
to enable our businesses to succeed and prosper in the years ahead
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positioning for recovery

* Total cash generated before returns to shareholders

Managing the cycle

Our strategy and business model are structured to
cope with changing economuc cycles This diagram
summarises the phases we go through While the
timing of recovery s still not fully clear, our planning
1s focused on preparing to capitalise on the upturn
as soon as It comes

Phase 1

When the economy 1s expanding, we utilise free cash flow to increase
Investment in our rentat fleet to support revenue, EBITOA and earnings
growth and reduce the age of our rental fleet We are also able to take
advantage of the many growth opportunities avallable We enjoy high
utihsation at good rates thereby generating strong margins Capital
expenditure will be strang and debt broadly flat whilst leverage will
tend to reduce as earmngs grow

Phase 2

In this phase markets are still strong but we recogmise this will not

last forever We begin to make preparations for the coming downturn,
in particular preparing the balance sheet for the lower levels of income
expected when the cycle turns All debt 1s comnmutted for the long
term and structured to rematn covenant free, enabling us to get on
with runming the business unimpeded through the cycle We start to
reduce the rate at which we invest in new equipment and begin gently
increasing the age of our rentat fleet This in turn increases cash flow




Phase 3

At the beginming of the downturn we may also rightsize the business
to ensure that it 15 best positioned to withstand the worsening economy
In this way we have, in the latest cycle, sustamed our EBITDA margin
above 20%

Phase 4

Once in recesston we focus on running a tight business, reducing capital
expenditure to around half the level of depreciation, further reducing
the fleet if required and, as a result, entering our most cash generative
phase Typically, we apply this cash to pay down debt, sustaining our
leverage at close to our target despite lower earnings At all imes,
however, we take care to maintamn the optimal flexibility to ensure that
we can bounce back aggressively once the upturn armives The focus 1s
on cost efficiency while at the same time positioning the business for
the recovery to come

Phase 5

Once the recovery is under way, we look for our preparations to pay off
Rental rates begin to recover asdoes our utilisation and consequently
we can anticipate strong earnings growth Capital expenditure necessarily
mcreases as the business expands again Leverage decreases as earnings
recover and, once agan, we start to invest for arganic growth At the
same time we may look for opportunities amaongst those in the industry
who have struggled to survive the recession and are in a weaker

position than ourselves Again the flexability of our business maodel
enables us to upgrade and expand quuckly to service increased demand
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business and financial review ...

our strategy

* We are confident that the actions
we have taken over the last two years
make us amongst the best positioned
of our peer group to benefit when
the cycle turns.” ....o...

Ashtead's core abjectives are to be a leader in the global equipment rental
business and deliver good returns for our investors We aim to build strong
relationships with our customers through efficiently delivering the services
they require Our strategy centres around mantaimng flexability through
effictent management of an inherently cyclical business, differentiating our
service offering across market sectors to avoid undue exposure to any one
area, achieving operational excellence through our business model and the
exceptional commitment of our staff and on delivering an average return
on investment across the economic cycle well ahead of our cast of capital

In good market conditions we achieve our objectives by generating strong
organic growth combtned with selective growth through acquisition if
profitable opportunities arise, as well as delivering high levels of custorner
satisfaction in weaker markets, we cease growth investment and utilise
our cash flow to manage debt levels and thereby keep our camital structure
solid through all parts of the cycle We carefully monitor a number of key
performance indicators which we track over ime Details of these can be
found on pages 18 and 19

Qur strategy 1s summansed in the actions opposite

Our strategy is designed also to manage risk A full review of the risks
which influence our business decisions can be found on pages 23 to 25

Managing the cycle

We describe ourselves as being a late cycle business in that our main end
market, non-residential construction, 1s usually one of the last parts of the
economy to be affected by a change m economic conditions This means
that we have a good degree of visibility on when we are likely to be
affected, as the signs will have been wvisible in other parts of the economy
for some time We are therefore able to plan accordingly and to react in

a umely manner when necessary

We have outlined on pages 12 and 13 the actions we take at each stage
of the economic ¢ycle On pages 10 and 11, we describe how careful
balance sheet and fleet management fit within our cyclical strategy

We are confident that the actions we have taken over the last two years
make us amongst the best positioned of our peer group to benefit when
the cycle turns Key to the execution of our strategy 1s the planning we
have undertaken to capitalise on the opportumties presented by the cycle

for both organic growth from winning market share from less well-
positioned competitors and positioning ourselves to be able to fund
acquisitive growth If suitably attractive, well-priced opportunities arise

in addition to econormitc cycles, our bustness 1s also subject to sigrificant
fluctuations in performance from quarter to quarter as a result of seasonal
effects Commercial construction activity tends to increase in the summer
and during extended pertods of mitd weather and to decrease in the
winter and during extended periods of inclement weather Furthermore,
due to the inadence of public holidays in the US and the UK, there are
more biling days in the first half of our financial year than the second

half leadtng to our revenue normally being higher in the first half On

a quarterly basis, the second quarter s typically our strongest quarter,
followed by the first and then the third and fourth quarters We manage
the business to accommeodate this natural seasonal cycle

Differentiating our service and fleet

As discussed on page 16, our differentiation of service and fleet means
that we are able to work in many different sectors and as such are less
exposed to a downturn n any one of them While private non-residential
construction activity continues to be subdued, major infrastructure and
government projects are continuing and we are benefiting from these

It will take a sustained return to GDP growth before growth returns to
the private non-residential construction market but a consequence of the
rapid slowdown in the US 1s the large number of projects that are ready
to recommence as soon as developers and financiers gain the necessary
confidence to resume development Meanwhile, the flexibitity of our
equipment offering means we are actively involved in numerous
government and infrastructure projects where activity levels are

being sustained deliberately

Qur customers range in size and scale from multinational busimesses,
through strong locat contractors to individual do-1t-yourselfers In the UK,
we have focused in recent years on building deeper relatianships with our
larger customers, with the top 150 customers comprising 53% of A-Plant’s
2009/10 revenue whilst in the US our managed accounts compnised 20%
of Sunbeit’s 2009/10 revenue




our strategy

i » Planning ahead
Managlng + Careful balance sheet management
the CyCIE: + Adapting our fleet and cash position

« Taking advantage of opportunities

H He » Diversified customer base
Differe nP:Iatlng * Wide variety of applications
our service « Broad fleet mix

and fleet:

: » Nationwide networks in the US and UK
EnSUl'll'-lg * Long-term partnerships with leading equipment manufacturers
operatlonal » Focused service-driven approach
exc euen ce: « Strong customer relationships

* 150 accreditation
* Industry-leading application of technology

Investing in » Highly skilled team empowered to operate in a devolved structure
*» Maintaining significant levels of experience
our people: » Strong focus on recruitment, training and incentivisation
imici * Effective management and menitoring of our fleet investment
MaX|m|S|ng + Optimisation of utilisation rates and returns
our return on » Flexibility in local pricing structures
investment:
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business and financial review ...

our strategy

The Group's diversified customer base includes construction, industriat
and homeowner customers, as well as government entities and specialist
contractars and is analysed by Standard Industry Classification in the
charts above

QOur fleet composition is broadly similar to that of our peers However, we
differentiate our business by emphasising smaller equipment types which
we believe offer the potential far hugher returns It 1s the needs of our
customers and overall demand that drive the compesition of our equipment
fleet, with the size, age and mix of our equipment rental fleet driven by
the needs of our diversified customer base The equipment we provide to
each custorner 1s equally diverse and we are often involved in supplying
various types of different equipment over an extended period at each
distinct stage of a project’s development

The breadth of our fleet mix supports our ability to service not only the
rental opportunities that exist in new-build construction, but also I a
wide range of other applications including industrial, events, repair and
mantenance and facibities management We also continue to develop
our portfolio of larger national and regional accounts, utilising the scale
and geographical footprint of our network

Over the past year the investment we have made in our fleet has been
for replacement rather than growth

Ensuring operational excellence
Our operating model 1s key to the way we deliver operational excellence
and encompasses the following elements

« In the US we achieve scale through a ‘clustered market’ approach

of grouping general tool and specialist rental locations in each of our
developed markets Sunbelt has rental operations in 43 major cities
including Washington DC, Dallas, Houston, Charlotte, Atlanta, Orlando
and Seattle This approach allows us to provide a comprehensive
product offenng and convenient service to our custormers wherever
their job sites may be within these markets

In the smaller geography of the UK, our strategy 1s focused on having
sufficient stores to allow us to offer a full range of equipment on a
nationwide basis We have invested heavily in recent years i migrating
our network towards fewer, larger locations which are able to address
all the needs of our customers in their respective markets

* Across our rental fleet, we generally seek to carry equipment from one
or two suppliers in each product range and to limit the number of model
types of each product We believe that having a standardised fleet
results in lower costs because we obtan greater discounts by purchasing
in bulk and reduce maintenance costs through more focused, and
therefore reduced training requirements for our workshop staff We are
also able to share spare parts between stores which helps to mimmise
the risk of over-stocking and to easily transfer fleet between locations
which helps us achieve leading levels of fleet utilisation
We purchase equipment from vendors with strong reputations for
product guality and reliability and maintain close relationshps with
these vendors to ensure good after-purchase service and support
However, we believe we have sufficient alternative sources of supply
for the equipment we purchase in each product category
We alsc aim to offer a full service solution for our customers Our
product range includes specialist equipment types such as purnp and
power, scaffolding and traffic management systems, which involve
providing service expertise as well as equipment
Our focused and dedicated approach to equipment rental improves
the effectiveness of our sales force by encouraging them to burld and
remforce relationships with customers and to concentrate on strong,
whole-life returns from our rental fleet, rather than on short-term
returns from sales of equipment Our large and expenenced sales
force works closely with our customers to ensure we meet their needs
Our sales staff are equipped with real-time access to fleet availability
and pricing mformation through their iPhenes, enabling them to
respond rapudly to changing dynamics m these cntical areas
We guarantee our service standards in both our businesses and
voluntarily accept financial penatties if we fail to meet our comrmitments
to our customers We believe that our focus on customer service and
the guarantees we offer help distingtush our businesses from competitors
and assist us in delivering superior financial returns We have worked
wath a lot of our custorers for many years Qur expenence 1s that we
gain a large amount of repeat business
* Our local management teams are experienced and incentivised to
produce superior financial returns and lugh quality standards




* We tvest heavily in our computensed paint of sale and service systems
as well as the software and online capabilities required to deliver
efficient service as well as high returns We capture and record the time
of delery and the customer’s signature electronically, allowing us to
systematically monitor and report on on-time deliveries We also use
electronic tracking systems to monitor and secure the location and
usage of large equipment.

Investing in our people

On page 45 we discuss the importance of our staff and corporate cufture
We aim to recruit good people and then invest in them throughout their
careers For example, A-Plant’s three year apprenticeship scheme 15 the
fargest in the rental industry and s always heavily oversubscribed

In general, the rental industry suffers from high staff turnover, particularly
withen certain Job categones such as mechanics and delivery truck drivers,
with turnover being particularty high within the first year of employment
We have made generally good progress in )mproving our staff retention

in recent years as shown in the staff turnover chart above

Both Sunbelt and A-Plant have extensive programmes 1n place to
ensure the

* recrutment of appropnate personnel to fulfil any vacancies caused
by promotion or turnover,

* ongoing training and development of employees at all levels throughout
the organisation,

« alignment of our employees with the Company's objectives, particularly
in relation to customer service, and

» appraisal, review and reward of our employees

These processes are subject to periodic review and development especaally
in response to changing business needs and market conditions

We motivate and reward our people through a combination of
competitive fixed pay and attractive incentive programmes which drive
our profits and return on tnvestment Qur sales force ts also incentivised

through our commission plans which are based on sales volume and
a broad measure of return on mvestment determined by reference
to equipment type and discount level

We flex our incentive plans to reflect the stage of the cycle in which
we operate which we believe hasbeen an important element in retaining
the confidence of our workforce through the recent difficult times

Maximising our return on investment

One of the key performance indicators we use to monttor our businesses
at all levels is return on investment {Rol} For the Group as a whole our
objective 1s always to ensure that, averaged across the economic cycle,
we deliver Rol well ahead of our cost of capital In the past two years
the recession has adversely impacted our returns as shown by the

chart above

As and when cyclical recovery becomes established, we expect to see
strong recovery in our Rol and we continue to believe that, averaged
through the cycle, our business model can offer attractive rates of return
well ahead of our cost of capital

The Group maximises its Rol through encouraging effective management
of invested capital by

* maintaining a concentration of higher-return (often speciabised)
equipment within the overall rental equipment fleet,

+ promoting the transfer of equpment to locatiens where maximum
utilsation rates and returns can be obtained,

* monitoring the amount of mvested caprtal at each of our stores, and

» empowering regional and local managers to adapt pricing policies in
response to local demand in order to maximise the overall return
achieved from the investment in our rental fleet
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business and financial review c.in..
key performance indicators

We constantly review our strategy and our business performance to ensure we are delivering against our stated
objectives At Group level, we measure the performance of the business using a number of key performance
indicators as shown in the charts below

Certain KPIs are more appropriately measured for each of cur two operating businesses, whereas other KPIs are
best measured for the Group as a whole

Physical utilisation (%)

Physical utilisation 1s measured as the dally average of the amount of iterrused fleet at cost on
rent as a percentage of the total fleet at cast and for Sunbelt 1s measured only for equipment whose
cost i1s over $7,500 (which compnsed 90% of its senalised fleet at 30 April 2010)

It 15 )/mportant to sustain annual average physical utiisation at between 60% and 70% through
the cycle If utiisation falls below 60% then yield wilt tend to suffer, whilst above 70% we may
not have enough fleet in certain stores to meet our customers' needs

Aided by winter 2008/9's fleet downsizing [arcund 10% in each business) and subsequent
adjustments, average 2009/10 physical utilisation remained healthy alt year despite difficult markets

Fleet on rent ($/£m)

Change in yield (%)

Fleet on rent 1s measured as the daily average of the onginal cost of our itermised equipment on
rent Onginal cost, rather than net book value, 1s used because 1t correlates more directly with
rental incorme as rental rates vary only slightly with the age of the item being rented

Fleet on rent measures the activity within our business and also provides an indication of market
share In 2009/10, fleet on rent declined 10% in both busmesses which 1s a smaller reduction than
the reported decline 1n US and UK construction volume Qur decline in fleet on rent 15 also smaller
than that reported by our major US peers Accordingly, we believe we continued to gain market
share in the past year

Yield s measured as the change m our rental revenues which 1s not explained by the change in
volume of fleet on rent Yield 1s therefore an all encompassing rmeasure which captures changes in
rental rates, changes in delivery charges and other ancdlary rental revenues, together with changes
tn both the customer mix (larger customers generally pay lower rates) and the mix of equipment

Yield declined 16% at Sunbelt and by 12% at A-Plant in the past year reflecting cost pressures in the
recession and the actions of certain, financially distressed, competitors Recently these pressures eased
somewhat, particularly in the US where the yield decline was 5% in the fourth quarter

Underlying EBITDA margins (%)

Underlying EBITDA margins are measured before exceptional costs Underlying EBITDA correlates
closely in our business with our top line cash flow and 1s therefore an important measure of our
financial health Given the cyclicality of our revenues, 1t 1s also iImportant that we adjust our cost
base as far as practicable to imit any reduction in our underlying EBITDA margin when revenues
are declining

We view our margin performance i 2009/10 as very strong with the margin decline imited !
to 2% in Sunbelt and 4% n A-Plant, despite the substantial revenue reductions we suffered ;
The nghtsizing programme we effected in winter 2008/9 meant that both businesses were

well prepared for the challenges of the recession




Underlying EPS (p)

Undertying EPS 15 a key measure of short-term financial performance for the Group as a whole
It 1s measured before exceptional costs, amortisation of acquired intangibles and farr value
remeasurements The decline from 2008 reflects the effects of the severe recession experienced
over the last two years The cyclical nature of the markets we serve and our balance sheet
structure, which involves us carrying a sigmificant interest cost, mean that underlying EPS varies
substantially through the cycle

Return on investment (%)

In a capital intensive business, profitability is not the only measure of performance as it 1s possible
to generate good margins but poor value for shareholders If assets are not deployed efficiently
Return on investrment (Rol) measures both profitability and capital efficiency and s calculated
as underlying operating profit divided by net tangible and intangible assets employed {excluding
net debt, deferred tax and fair value remeasurements})

Averaged across the econorric cycle we look to delver Rol well ahead of our cost of caprtat. However, in
the past two years the recession has adversely impacted our returns Qur returns in the strong markets
of 2006 and 2007 were atso limited by our acquisitran 1 August 2006 of NationsRent whose Rol,

when acquired, was significantly below that of Sunbelt which necessarily took us sorme time to correct:

Net debt and leverage at constant exchange rates

We seek to maintain a conservative balance sheet structure with a target range for net debt to
underlying EBITDA through the cycle of 2-3 times At 30 Aprl 2070, at constant exchange rates,
leverage at 31 times was Just outside our target range as we had atways anticipated could be the
case at the bottom of a deep recession Our debt leverage is substantially lower than that of all
our major US peers, affording us good flexibility for the future

We also aim to sustain significant availability (the difference between the amount we are able
to borrow under our asset-based faclity at any time and the amount drawn) through the cycle
Availabitity at 30 April 2010 was $537m which both ensures all our debt remans effectively
covenant free and also provides us with substantial headroom for future investment

Staff turnover (%)

We are a service business that differentiates itself by the strength of our service offering
Central to this service offering are our people Staff retention 15 a reasonable indicator of how
our employees feel about our Company While it 15 not unexpected that employee turnover
declines in a recession, we are nonetheless pleased with the ongoing reduction given the
pressure our people are under to deliver in difficult market conditions

Staff turnover is calculated as the number of leavers in a year (excluding redundancies) divided
by the average headcount during the year

Safety

Our business volves frequent movement and maintenance of large and heavy pieces of
equipment, often in confined spaces Rigarous safety processes are essential if we are to avod
acadents which could cause injury to our people and damage our reputatton

In the chart we have plotted the OSHA reportable incident rate for Sunbelt and the RIDDOR
reportable incident rate for A-Plant, 1n each of the past three years While increased pressure
on our businesses during the recession resulted in an increase in A-Plant this year, we believe
our continued focus on health and safety will reduce incident rates in the future
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business and financial review ...

our markets

Ashtead’s markets are the US where we trade as
Sunbelt and the UK where we trade as A-Plant

The US

Sunbelt operates 393 stores grouped into

39 Districts and three Territories. We have

a nationwide network and a broad and highly
diversified construction and general industrial
customer base.

Last year Sunbelt dealt with over 550,000 custormers and conducted 16m
rentals We are only able to estimate the ultimate sources of our revenues
as we only rarely deal direct with the property occupierfowner However,
we believe our main end markets to be broadly as shown i the chart above

This year has been difficult as our main market, non-residential canstruction,

declined in the recession by c16% m the year to 30 April 2010 as
illustrated by the calendar year construction data above

Early signs of recovery are beginning to be seen by economic forecasters
with most expecting a reduced rate of decline in non-residential
construction for the remainder of 2010 followed by a return to growth
in 2011 Forecasts from Cit1 Investment Research and Analysts are
included in the chart above

The US Department of Commerce divides non-residential construction
into the following categorres

Lodging Transportation

Office Communication
Commercial Power

Healthcare Highway and street
Educational Sewage and waste disposal
Religious Water supply

Conservation and development
Manufacturing

Public safety
Amusement and recreation

Sunbelt servesall of these end markets and accordingly 1s able to adapt
to wherever demand 15 greatest In 2010/11 we expect that the public
sector or institutional element of the market, which through the economic
cycle tends to represent around 50% of the total and includes categories
such as schoals, hosprtals and transportation, will perform better

than commercisl work, aided by President Obama’s stimulus package
This 1s being driven in large part by the need for increased infrastructure
mnvestment in the US following the significant population growth in
recent years {up from 280rm in 2000 to 309m currently according to

the US Census Bureau) The LS population also has one of the fastest
annual growthrates amongst developed economies at ¢ 97% per annum
{compared to 028% in the UK and O 10% on average in Western Europe)
which we expect to continue to be a favourable structural driver of
construction demand and hence growth for Sunbelt’s services in the future

Sunbelt’s revenues are iImpacted not only by the volume of actwity
in 1ts end markets but also by two other factors rental penetration
and market share Both of these factors are positive and are therefore
helping moderate the impact on us of the substantial volume decline
in our end markets

Rental penetration
Rental penetration continues to Increase as shown by the chart opposite

Increasingly. bulding contractors 1n the US are coming to appreciate
the advantages of outsourcing their equipment needs in terms of

* having available exactly the right equipment required for the
task at hand

* removing the need to manage and service a non-core activity

* removing the balance sheet financing requirement that comes
with ownership

We anticipate that the current recession and the period of recovery
that will tnevitably follow, will drive additional outsourcing as more
and more US contractors come to appreciate fully the benefit of not
needing to own and service therr own equipment




The American Rental Association comrmissions an annual survey Into
the size of the US rental market and its expected future growth which
1 sumrmarised in the chart above

This chart shows how, despite the downturn of the past two years, the
rental market has exhubited a compound annuat growth rate of 4 2%,
well ahead of the growth in the US economy overall as measured by GDP,
driven in particutar by increased outsourcing of equipment needs driving
higher rental penetration Once the US recession concludes, the American
Rental Association and its consultants, IHS Glebal Insight, expect that the
US rental market will return to at least histoncal rates of growth

Competitors and market share
There are four large national equipment rental companies in the US as
shown in the table below

No. of US reverue Approx.
stores {$br] _market share
United Rentals 485 19 7%
Sunbelt Rentals 393 11 4%
RSC 443 I 4%
Hertz Equipment Rental Co 226 08 3%

Source Based on company filings, 12 manths to 31 March 2010

Like us, United Rentals, RSC and Hertz are publicly listed businesses
Beyond the top four, the market in which Sunbelt operates 1s charactensed
by a large number of small competitors We expect the recession to result
in further consolidation of the industry and growth in market share for
the larger comparues, each of which have stabte financial structures and
are therefore well positioned for the cycle relative to smaller, less
well-funded competitors

As we suggested last year, a combination of financial constraint and
uncertain order books has resutted in contractors, particularly in the US,
increasingly choosing the rental option The established trend towards
increased outsourcing of equipment supply in the US has accelerated
through the cycle The fragmentation of the US industry, due to a large
number of smaller operators, has also been reduced as some of these have
gone out of business As we expected, the rental market has consolidated

during the downturn benefiting the larger, better financed players

such as ourselves This 1s evidenced by the American Rental Association
commenting that in Januvary 2010 it had 8% fewer members than

a year earlier As a result we have gained market share and we expect
this to continue

Future market trends

As stated above, we do not expect construction markets in the US to
improve materially until 20171 However, in the medium term we remain
canfident in our end markets and our increased share of those markets
We also expect increased demand through greater outsourcing This will
be driven by increased concerns over health and safety issues, as well as
the fact that use of an outsourced specialist provides the contractor with
the ability to rent exactly the nght piece of equipment for the task at
hand while being confident that the equipment will be of recent
manufacture and mamntained by an expenenced, specialist workforce

As we detail elsewhere 1n this repart, the extensive work we have done in
positioning the business to capitalise on opportunities once the recession
15 over will benefit us once the upturn comes
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business and financial review ...

our markets

The UK

A-Plant, our UK business, rents a similar range
of equipment to Sunbelt, to a similar profile
of general industrial and construction oriented
customers. A-Plant operated 105 stores at
April 2010, dealt with approximately 26,000
customers and conducted approximately 0.4m
rentals in the past year. A-Plant serves a more
mature market than in the US and one where
rental penetration is estimated to be fairly
stable at around 70%.

The recession has resulted in increased pressure on our UK business and
we expect this to continue In the short term as construction volumes
decline We believe that A-Plant is relatively well positioned in the market
at this time, given its emphasis on both the utility and infrastructure
markets {power, water, sewerage and roads) and major projects such

as nuclear decommussioning and the Clympics, as these areas remain
strong As in the US, we believe we have continued to increase our share
of the market in the UK over the last year In the medium term, a return
to growth will come with an improving economy which will bring with it
an improved private commercial sector and housing market Public sector
work currently remains important with key projects in power, education
and transport However, we remain realistic in our expectations regarding
the level of public expenditure in the medium term due to the pressures
on the government budget

The UK plant and tool market i1s not well researched but AMA Research
Limited's most recent market survey i1s shown above

This chart shows that whilst the rental market has exhibrited good
tong-term growth with a compound annual growth rate of 17%, 1t1s
inevitably slower growth than the immature rental market in the US

Competitors
A-Plant 15 one of the top three equipment rental businesses in the UK with

its key peers being shown in the table below

No of Revenue Approx.
stores {Em)  market share
Speedy Hire 370 351 9%
A-Plant 105 162 4%
HSS 250 151 4%
Hewden 63 141 4%

Source international Aental News

Future market trends

We do not expect to see a significant upturn in the UK market as we
move forward Whilst housing construction now seems to have reached
the bottom of its cycle, and should grow gently in 2010, most commercial
sectors will remain weak Infrastructure renewal and major projects such
as the Olympics will continue through 2071 to be a large part of the
construction market as public sector rather than private investment 1s
now the main drnver of demand However, it 1s inevitable that public
investment in new projects will be cut back frorn the second half of 2010
which we expect will mean lower levels of public work from 2012 once
current projects have concluded

These factors make it likely that the UK market will remamn difficult for
some years ahead until resumed GDP growth ultimately drives a recovery
in commeraial construction However, we expect A-Plant to continue to
gain market share as a number of its less weli-inanced competitors either
exit the market or downsize thew operations




business and financial review ...
principal risks and unceriainties

The Group inevitably faces certain nsks and uncertainties in its day-to-day operations and it 1s management's
role to mitigate and manage these risks The Board has established a formal risk management process which has
identified the following principal risks and uncertainties which could affect employees, operations, revenues,
profits, cash flows and assets of the Group

Risk description

Potential impact

Mitigation

Econamic conditions

The construction industry, from which we earn
the majonty of our revenues, 15 cychical with
construction industry cycles typically laggmg

the general economic cycle by between six and
18 months We may suffer a protracted reduction
in demand for our products and services if the
construction industry takes longer than expected
to come out of the downward phase of the ndustry
cycle or has a weaker than anticipated recovery

* Prudent management through the different phases of
the cycle

* Flexibility in the business model maintained to ensure
adaptability whatever the economic environment

* Capital structure and financing arranged in recognition
of the cyclical nature of our industry

Competition

The already competitive market becomes

even more competitive and we suffer increased
competition from large national competitors
or small companies operating at a local

level resufting in reduced market share and
lower revenue

* Create commercial advantage by providing the highest level
of service, consistently and at a price which offers value

* Excel in the areas that provide barriers to entry to newcomers
industry-leading application of IT, expertenced personnel and
a broad network and equipment fleet

« Regularly estimate and monitor our market share and track
the performance of our competitors to ensure that we are
performing effectively

Exchange rates

Exchange rate exposure arises from translation
risk due to the majority of our assets, biabilities,
revenues and costs being denominated in US
dollars The relative value of pound sterling and
the US dollar can fluctuate widely and could
have a material effect on our financial condition
and results of operations

* Financing arranged so that virtually all our debt 1s denominated
in US dollars providing a partial, but substantial, hedge against
the translation effects of changes in the dollar exchange rate

* Dollar interest payable on this debt also imits the impact
of changes in the dollar exchange rate on our earnings

Supply chain

We source equipment and parts from a small
number of principal suppliers If we are unable
to obtain the nght equipment and parts at
the nght time for a reasonable cost from our
suppliers, this could have an adverse impact
on the Group’s financial perfarmance

= Partnenng relatronships with suppliers that have a strong
reputation for product quality and reliability and good
after-sales service and support

* Sufficient alternative sources of supply for the equipment
we purchase i each product category

+ Size and scale of our business and of aur rental fleets enables
us to negotiate favourable delivery, priang, warranty and
other terms with our supphiers
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principal risks and uncertainties

Risk description

Potential impact

Mrtigation

Financing

Debt facilities are provided for a finite period of
time and we could fail to renew facilities prior

to thew matunity Such renewal could be affected
by any structural issues in the credit markets
Alternatively, our debt facilities might become
unavailable by virtue of non-comphance with
their terms If we fail to renew required debt
faolities, we might be unable to meet our
obligations as they fall due

= The weighted average remaning fe of our debt facilities
is five years with the first significant matunty bemng the
asset-based senior bank debt facility which now extends
until Novernber 2013

Qur faciities have no quarterly monitored financial covenants
provided availability on the asset-based senior bank debt
exceeds $150m At 30 April 2010 availability was $537m

If they are ever required to be calculated, covenants are computed
at constant exchange rates and before exceptional items

Acquisitions

Acquisitions may not detiver the expected
benefits through overpaying, acquining
unforeseen liabilities or fallure to
integrate effectively

Detalled operational and financral due diligence to ensure
particularly that operational and financial risks are identified
and appropriately factored into our valuation of the target

Development of a rigorous post-acquisiion integration plan
with close management and monitoring to ensure synergies
are realised fully

Accounting/fraud

Accounting or fraud discrepancies could occur If
our finanaial and operational control framework
15 inadequate resulting in a loss and/or misstatement
of the Group's financial performance

Maintain a robust internal financial control framework

A strong internal financial and eperational audrt function
reviews the operation of the control framework and reports
regularly to management and the Audit Commuttee

IT systems

We own over 250,000 units of rental equipment
and in the past year entered into approximately
2 Om rental contracts which are tracked and
contralled using fully integrated computer
systems in the US and UK A serious uncured
failure in this area would have an immediate
impact on our business, rendering us unable to
record and track our high volume of relatively
low-value transactions

Robust and well-protected data centres with multiple data
links to protect against the nisk of falure

Detailed business recovery plans which are tested perodically

Separate near-live back-up data centres which are designed
1o be able to provide the necessary services in the event of
a faiure at the primary site

People

Retaining and attracting good people 1s key to
delivering superior performance and customer
service Excessive staff turnover is likely to impact
on our ability to mamtain the appropriate quality
of service to our customers and would ultimately
impact our financial performance adversely

Provide well-structured and competitive reward and benefit
packages that ensure our ability to attract and retan the
employees we need

Ensure that our staff have the right working environment and
equipment to enable them to do the best job possibie and
maximise thetr satisfaction and fulfilment at work

Invest in opportuntties for our people to enhance therr skills
and develop their careers to the mutual benefit of both
themselves and the Company




Risk description

Potential impact

Mitigation

Health and safety

Accidents happen which might result in injury
to an individual, claims against the Group and
damage to our reputation

* Maintain appropriate health and safety policies and procedures
to reascnably guard our employees against the nsk of wnjury

« Induction and training programmes reinforce health and safety
policies and procedures

* Programmes to support our customers exercising their
resporsibility to their own workforces when using our equipment.

Compliance with laws and regulations

Failure to comply with the frequently changing
regulatory environment could result in
reputational damage or financial penalty

= Maintaining a legal function to oversee management of these
risks and to achieve compliance with relevant legislation

= Group-wide ethics policy and ‘whistle-blowing' arrangements,
by which employees may, in confidence, raise concerns about
any alleged improprieties

+ Policies and practices evolve to take account of changes in
legal obligations

* Traiming and induction programmes ensure our staff receive
appropnate trairung and briefing on the relevant policies

Environmental

We could fail to comply with the numerous
laws governing environmental protection

and occupational health and safety matters
These laws regulate such issues as wastewater,
stormwater, solid and hazardous wastes and
materials, and arr quality This potentsally
creates hazards to our employees, damage

to our reputaticn and expeses the Group to,
amongst other things, the cost of investigating
and remediating contarmination at our sites as
well as sites to which we send hazardous wastes
for disposal or treatment regardless of fault, and
also fines and penalties for non-complance

* Stringent policies and procedures in place at all our stores

* Procurement polictes reflect the need for the latest availabte
emissions management and fuel efficiency tools

* Momitoring and reporting of carbon emissions
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financial review

Trading
Reverue EBITDA Operating profit

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Sunbelt in 5m 10805 14500 3508 500 4 116 6 2418
Sunbelt i £m 6745 8655 2190 2987 727 1444
A-Plant 1623 2080 420 628 18 161
Group central costs - - (59) {54} (690) (s5)
Continuing operations 836.8 10735 2551 3561 685 1550
Net financing costs {635) (676)
Profit before tax, exceptionals and amortisation
from continuing operations 5.0 874
Ashtead Technology - 28
Exceptional items {net) 33 {171)
Amortisation {2.5) (34)
Tota!l Group profit before taxation 58 697
Taxation (37 (67)
Profit attnbutable to equity holders of the Company 21 630
Margins
Sunbelt 325% 345% 108% 167%
A-Plant 259% 302% 11% 77%
Group 30 5% 332% 8 2% 14 4%

The year’s results reflect the impact of the global recession which
produced a sigrsficant reduction in construction volumes in both the US
and the UK and hence a penod of lower demand for our rental services
As a result, underlying Group revenue reduced tc £837m (2009 £107bn})
whilst the underlying pre-tax profit was £5m (2009 £87m) Measured

at constant exchange rates, to eliminate currency translation effects
underlying revenue declined 25% to £837m, underlying EBITDA by 31%
to £255m and underlying operating profit by 58% to £69m

Rental revenues declined 25% in Sunbelt to $989m and by 21% i A-Plant
to £152m reflecting 109% less fleet on rent in both markets and average
yield declines of 16% in Sunbelt and 12% in A-Plant Fleet size remained
broadly flat all year in both businesses at $2 1bn and £320m respectively
whilst physical utiisation rematned comparatively strong

Fourth quarter trends were encouraging with Sunbelt returning to
operating profit growth in the guarter an rental revenues down 8%

The prompt action we tock in the winter of 2008/9 to rightsize the cost
base to the lower activity levels and the tight cost control we mamtained
all year ensured that operating costs before depreciation and used
equipment sold reduced by $204m (239%) in Sunbelt and by £21m (16%)
in A-Plant For the Group as a whole, operating costs (before depreciation
and used equipment sold) were reduced by £148m or 21%, at constant
exchange rates, compared to the previous year and by £191m compared
to the 12 months ended 31 Octaber 2008, the period immediately before
we implemented the nightsizing programme As a result, despite the
revenue reductions, full year EBITDA margins declined by only 2% in
Sunbelt and 4% in A-Plant and remained above 30% for the Group as

a whole

Depreciation expense declined 7% reflecting the smaller average fleet size

to give an underlying operating profit for the year of $117m (2009 $242m)
in Sunbelt and £2m in A-Plant (2008 £16my)

Group results

Reflecting the operating results discussed above and a US dollar exchange
rate that was on average 5% stronger against the pound sterling (5160

in 2009/10 v $168 1n 2008/9), Group EBITDA before exceptional items
declined £10Tmto £255m whilst the underlying operating profit reduced
from £155m to £69m

Lower average interest rates and significantly lower underlying average
debt levels partly offset by the higher margin payable from November
on the extended senior debt resulted in a lower net financing cost of
£64m (2009 £68m), despite an adverse translation effect from the
stronger dollar m which all our debt i1s now denominated

Pre-tax profit and exceptional items

Exceptional items this year compnised the £3m non-cash write-off of

the remaining deferred finanaing costs on the 2006 senior debt faclity
following its renewai in Novemnber 2009, a credit of £5m relating to the
remeasurernent at fair value of the ermbedded call options in the Group's
semor secured notes, and a £1m credit for the release of a provision for
potential warranty claims on the June 2008 sale of Ashtead Technology
which proved not to be required After amortisation of acquired intangbles
of £2m, the reported profit before tax for the year was £5m {2009 £1m)

Taxation

The current year effective tax rate was stable at 35% (2009 34%)

In addition, there was an adjustment of £2m to prior year tax Moving
forward, once the economies in the UK and US recover from the current
recession, we expect the Group's effective tax rate for accounting
purpases to remain around 35% whikst the cash tax rate should
continue to be substantially lower

Earnings per share

Underlying earnings per share for the year decreased to 0 2p (2009 11 9p}
whilst basic earnings per share from continuing activities for the year was
0 2p (2009 O 4p)




Dividends

In accordance with our policy of setting dividend levels in hght of both
profitability and cash generation at a leve! that s sustainable across
the cycle, the Board 1s recommending a final dvidend of 2 Op per share
(2009 1675p) making 2 9p for the year (2009 2 575p) Payment of
the 2009/10 dividend will cost £14 5m and whilst not covered by
2009/10 earnings 15, in the Board'’s view, appropriate

If approved at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the final
dvidend will be paid on 10 September 2010 to shareholders on the
register on 20 August 2010

Current trading and outlook

Fleet on rent and revenue continued to be encouraging in both of our
markets during May, supporting our view that the winter of 2010 was
the botiom of the cycle

In the US we continue to believe that we will see stabilisation in markets
m the current year with smproving trends through 2011 In the UK, whilst
current markets are also stabilising uncertainty around the impact of
public sector spending cuts makes the medium term less certamn

In preparation for the next phase of the cycle, we have started a fleet
reinvestment programme, funded from operating cash flow Qur
well-structured debt facility means that we can react quickly if
markets differ materially from those we anticipate

Having strengthened our market position in the year Just ended and with
the flexibility provided by our strong balance sheet, the Board believes
that the Group 1s well positioned for the future

Balance sheet

Fixed assets

Capital expenditure m the yearwas £63m (2009 £238m) of which £56m
was invested In the rental fleet {2009 £208m) Disposat proceeds totalled
£32m (2009 £100m) giving net expenditure at £31m (2009 £138m)

Expenditure on rental equipment was 88% of tota! capital expenditure,
with the balance relating to the delivery vehicle fleet, praperty improvemnents
and to camputer equipment. Capital expenditure by division was as follows

2010 2009
Sunbelt in $m 69 6 2210
Sunbelt in Em 455 1491
A-Plant 101 584
Total rental equipment 556 2075
Delvery vehicles, property improvements & computers 78 308
Totat additions 63.4 2383

Reflecting the recession, alk this year's capital expenditure was entirely for
replacement as was the case in 2008/9

The average age of the Group's senalised rentat equipment, which
constitutes the substanttal majonty of our fleet at 30 Apnil 2010 was
44 months (2009 35 months) on a net book value basis Sunbelt's fieet
had an average age of 46 months (2009 38 months) whilst A-Plant’s
fleet had an average age of 36 months {2009 27 months)

As we start to prepare for the next phase of the cycle, next year's

capital expenditure will increase as we begmn cyclicat fleet reinvestrment
Accordingly, we anticipate investing around £225m gross (slightly ahead
of depreciation) and £175m net of disposal proceads which will be mostly
for replacerment rather than growth With equipment lead times stdl quite
short for now, we retain the ability to flex expenditure levels in response
to market conditions

The onginal cost of the Group's rental fleet and the dollar and physical utilisation for the year ended 30 April 2010 1s shown below

Rentd fleet at onpna cast LTM rental LTM dollar LT™ physical

30 April 2070 30 Aol 2009 LTM average revenue utisation utiisation

Sunbelt In $m 2,094 2,136 2,124 989 47% 64%

Sunbelt in £m 1,368 1442 1388 618 47% 64%

A-Plant 321 3217 319 152 48% 69%
1,689 1,763 1707 770

Dollar utiisation 15 defined as rental revenues divided by average fleet at original (ar 'first’) cost and, in the yearended 30 April 2010, was 47% at Sunbelt
(2009 57%) and 48% at A-Plant (2009 52%) Physical utiisation 1s time-based utiisation, which s calculated at the daily average of the original cost of
equipment on rent as a percentage of the total value of equipment in the fleet at the measurement date and, in the year ended 30 Apnl 2010, was 64%
at Sunbelt (2009 66%) and 69% at A-Plant (2009 67%) At Sunbelt, physical utilisation 1s measured only for equipment with an original cost in excess

of $7.500 which compnised 90% of its fleet at 30 April 2010
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financial review

Trade receivables

Receivable days at 30 April were 45 days (2009 47 days) The bad debt
charge for the year ended 30 April 2010 as a percentage of total revenue
was 12% (2009 16%) Trade receivables at 30 Apnil 2010 of £114m
(2009 £124m) are stated net of provisions for bad debts and credit
notes of £16m (2009 £18m) with the pravision representing 12 0%
{2009 12 4%) of gross recewvables

Trade and other payables

Group payable days were 88 days in 2010 (2009 53 days) with capital
expenditure-related payables, which have longer payment terms totalling
£28m (2009 £9m}) Payment penods for purchases other than rental
equipment vary between seven and 45 days and for rental equipment
between 30 and 120 days

Provisions

Prowvisions of £41m (2009 £54m) relate to the provision for self-msured
retained risk under the Group's self-insurance policies, as well as to vacant
property provistons

The Group's business exposes it to claims for personal injury, death or
property damage resulting from the use of the equipment it rents and
from injunies caused i motor vehicle acadents in which 1ts vehicles are
involved The Group carries insurance covenng a wide range of potential
clarms at levels 1t believes are sufficient to cover existing and future clarms

Our lhiability insurance programmes provide that we can only recover
the Liability related to any parttcular claim in excess of an agreed excess
amount of either $500,000 or $650,000 depending on the particular
lizbility programme In certain, but not all cases, this Lability excess
amount 1s subject to an annual cap, which lmits the Group’s maximum
Liability in respect of these excess amounts A higher excess of up to $2m
existed on our general kability pobicies until September 2008 In the UK
our self-insured excess per ctaim i1s much lower than in the US and 1s
typically £100 000 per claim or less

Our insured liability coverage 1s imited in total to a maximum of
£150m per claim

Pensions

The Group operates a number of pension plans for the benefit of employees,
far which the overall charge included in the financial statements was £1m
{2009 £6m} Amongst these, the Group now has Just one defined benefit
pension plan which covers approximately 150 employees in the UK and
which was closed to new members i 2001 All our other penston plans
are defined contribution plans

The Group's defined benefit pension plan was measured 1n accordance
with the accounting standard IAS 19 — Employee Benefits, £8m 1n deficit
at 30 Apnl 2010 (2009 £0 3mn surplus) During the year, asset values
exceeded the expected return on plan assets of £3m included in the
income statement by £9m However, offsetting this was the impact of
changes n the required market-linked discount rate which narrmalised to
5 5% 1n 2010 from the exceptionally high 7 0% in 2009 which reflected
market uncertainties regarding the vatue of bonds issued, particularly by
the financial sector, at that time In addition, we adopted the S1'CMI
2009" mortality tables which we believe to be more appropriate to the
Group as they are based on a study of life expectancy for members of
pension schemes rather than purchasers of life assurance policies which
was the basis for PAOO mortality tables used last year This reduced
pension habilities by around 4% Accordingly there was a net actuarial
toss of £9m in the year which 1n accordance with our accounting policy
of iImmediate recognition, was taken to the staternent of
comprehensive income

The next tnenmal review of the plan's funding position by the trustees
and the actuary 1s due as at 30 Aprit 2010 The Company anticipates
that it will reach agreement with the plan’s trustees in the cormung year
on a suitable recovery plan to address any funding deficit shown by
that review

Contingent labilities

The Group 15 also subject ta perniodic legal claims and tax audits in the
ordinary course of 1ts business, none of which is expected to have a
significant impact on the Group's financial position

Cash flow
Year to 30 Apal
2010 2009
£m fm
EBITDA before exceptronal items 2551 3589

Cash inflow from operations before exceptional
costs and changes in rental equipment 2656 3736

Cash conversion ratic* 104 1% 104 1%
Maintenance rental capital expendrture pad (361) {208 5)
Payments for non-rental capital expenditure (67 (27 1)
Rental equipment disposal proceeds 268 853
Other property, plant and equipment disposal proceeds 40 66
Tax received {net} 03 08
Financing costs paid (net) (54 7) (647)
Cash flow before payment of exceptional costs 199.2 1660
Exceptional costs paid (82) (94)
Total cash generated from operations 1910 1566
Business (acquisitions)/disposals 07 850
Total cash generated 19203 2456
Drvidends paid (12 8) {129}
Share buybacks & other equity transactions (net) - (159)
Decrease in net debt 1775 2168

* Cashinflow from operatsons before exceptronal items and changes in rental equipment as
2 percentage of EBITDA before exceptional items

Cash inflow from operations before exceptional costs and changes in
rental equipment decreased 29% to £266m reflecting lower EBITDA in
2010, whilst the cash conversion ratio was 104% (2009 104%) reflecting
reduced working capital in the recession Total payments for capital
expenditure (rental equipment and other PPE) were £43m whilst total
disposal proceeds recerved totalled £31m Net cash capital expenditure
was therefore £12m in the year (2009 £144m)

There were again no net tax payments as a result of the reduced profitabibity
tn the recession Financing costs paid differ from the accounting charge in
the income statement due to the timing of interest payments in the year
and non-cash interest charges They reduced significantly due to the impact
of both lower average interest rates and lower average debt levels, partially
offset by the higher margin payable on the extended tranche of the ABL
facility from November Exceptional costs paid of £8m represented mostly
staff severance and vacant property costs, all of which were provided for
at 30 Apri 2009

Accordingly the Group generated £190m (2009 £246m) of net cash
nflow i the year This reflected net cash generation of £191m from
operations (2009 £157m) while In 2008/9 a further £83m was generated
from the june 2008 sale of Ashtead Technology £13m of this net inflow
was returned toequity shareholders by way of drvidends with the balance
of £178m applied to reduce outstanding debt

Over the past two years, a total of £436m of cash has been generated
with £42m returned to shareholders in dividends and buy-backs and
£394m applied to reduce net outstanding debt

Net debt

The chart opposite shows how, at constant Apnl 2010 exchange rates
for comparability, we held debt flat in 2006 and 2007 whilst tnvesting
significantly in fleet reconfiguration and de-ageing following the
NationsRent acquisition Through 2008 to 2070, we significantly lowered




our capital expenditure taking advantage of our young average fleet age,
and consequently delivered significant reductions in outstanding debt,
measured at constant exchange rates as shown in the chart below

Net debt at constant currency

In greater detail, closing net debt at 30 April 2010 comprised

2010 2000
£m £m
First prionty senior secured bank debt 3675 5011
finance lease obligations 35 79
8625% second pnornity senior secured notes, due 2015 160.2 1651
9% second prionity semior secured notes, due 2016 3526 3635
8838 10376
Cash and cash equivalents (548} (17
Total net debt 8290 10359

Net debt at 30 April 2010 was significantly lower than last year at £829m
(2009 £1,036m) 100% of our debt at 30 April 2010 was drawn in dollars
providing a substantial but partial natural hedge against Sunbelt’s
dollar-based net assets

Substantially all of the Group's cash and cash equivalents at 30 April 2010
were deposited with one large UK-based finanaal institution which 1s not
expected to fail

The ratio of net debt to underlying EBITDA at constant rates was 31 times
at 30 April 2010 (2009 2 6 times), Just outside our 2—3 times target range
as we had always anticipated could be the case during a severe recession
This calculation uses Group EBITDA before exceptionats from continuing
operations for the 2009/10 year of £265m calculated at constant 30 Aprit
2010 exchange rates At actual rates net debt leverage was 3 2 times

Our debt package remamns well structured for the challenges of current
market conditions We retain substantial headroom on faciities which are
committed for the long term, an average of five years at 30 Apnil 2010,
with the first maturity being on our asset-based sermor bank facility which
extends untit November 2013 The weighted average interest cost of our
debt facibties (including non-cash amortisation of deferred debt raising
costs) 1s approximately 7 4%

Financial performance covenants under the two senior secured notes issues
are only measured at the tume new debt 15 raised There are two financial
performance covenants under the asset-based first prionty senior bank faality

= funded debt to EBITDA before exceptional items not to exceed
4 0 times, and

- a fixed charge ratio (comparing EBITDA before exceptional items less
net caprtal expendrture paid 1n cash over the sum of scheduled debt
repayments plus cash interest, cash tax payments and dividends paid)
which 1s required to be equal to or greater than 11 times

These covenants do not, however, apply when avallability {the difference
between the borrowing base and facitity utihsation) exceeds $150m

At 30 Apnit 2010 excess availabilty under the bank facility was $537m
{5550m at 30 Apnil 2009) Consequently the Group's entire debt package
1s expected to remain effectively covenant free, as has been the case
during each of the last five years since the current debt structure was
adopted in 2004

Although the covenants were not required to be measured at 30 April
2010, the Group was in compliance with both of them at that date, as
1t had been throughout the fiscal year

Debt facillities
The Group’s principal debt facilities are as follows

Asset-based first priority, secured bank debt

During the year, the $1 84bn first pnionty asset-based senior secured loan
faality ('ABL facility } was amended and now consists of a $1,313m
revalving credit facility commutted until November 2013 ('the extended
tranche’) and a further $5529m avatlable cn the origmal terms untd August
2011 consisting of a $303m revolving credit facility ('the non-extended
tranche’} and a $226m term loan Repayment of the term loan and
amounts due to non-extending lenders will be met from the extended
tranche of the revolver commitments

Pricing for the revolving credit faality 15 based on the ratio of funded debt
to EBITDA according to a grid which vanes, depending on leverage, from
LIBOR plus 300bp to LIBOR plus 375bp for the extended tranche and LIBOR
plus 150bp to LIBOR plus 225bp for the non-extended tranche The term
loan 1s priced at LUBOR plus 175bp At 30 April 2010, the Group's borrowing
rate was LIBOR plus 350bp on the extended tranche, LIBOR plus 200bp on
the non-extended tranche and LIBOR plus 175bp on the term loan

The ABL facility carries mirtmal amortisation of $2 5m per annum on the
term loan but otherwise Is non-amertising As the ABL facility 1s asset-
based, the maximurm amount avalable to be borrowed {which includes
drawings in the form of standby letters of credit) depends on asset values
(recewvables, inventory, rental equipment and real estate) which are
subject to periodic independent appraisal and was imited to $1,078m

at 30 Apnl 2010

8 625% second priority senior secured notes due 2015 having

a nominal value of $250m

On 3 August 2005, the Graup, thraugh 1ts wholly owned subsidiary
Ashtead Holdings PLC, 1ssued $250m of 8 625% second priority semor
secured notes due 1 August 2015 The notes are secured by second
priority secunty interests over substantially the same assets as the
first priority senior secured credit facility and are also guaranteed by
Ashtead Group plc.

9% second priority senior secured notes due 2016 having

a nominal value of $550m

On 15 August 2006, the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary
Ashtead Capitat, Inc, 1s5ued $550m of 9% second priority senior secured
nates due 15 August 2016 Thenotes are secured by second priority
secunty interests over substantally the same assets as the serior secured
credit faclity and are also guaranteed by Ashtead Group plc The two note
1ssues rank pari passu on a second lien basis

Under the terms of both the 8625% and 3% notes, the Group s, subject
to important exceptions, restricted in its ability to incur additiona! debt,
pay dividends, make investments, sell assets, enter into sale and leaseback
transactions and merge or consolidate with another company Interest is
payable on the 8 625% notes on 1 February and 1 August of each year
and on the 9% notes on 15 February and 15 August Both servor secured
notes are histed on the Official List of the UK Listing Authonty
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business and financial review ...

financial review

Minimum contracted debt commitments

The table below summanises the matunity of the Group’s debt and alse shows the minimum annual commitments under off balance sheet operating

leases at 30 April 2010 by year of expiry

Payments due by year ended 30 Apnl
2011 2012 2013 2014 2615 Thereafter Total
£m £m £m £m £m im £m
Bank and cther debt - - - 3848 - - 3848
Finance leases 31 04 - - - - 35
8625% senior secured notes - - - - - 1633 1633
90% senior secured notes - - - - - 3593 3583
31 04 - 3848 - 5226 9108
Deferred costs of raising finance - - - (173) - (98) (27 1)
Cash at bank and in hand (548) - - - - - {548)
Net debt (517) 04 - 3675 - 5128 8290
Operating leases’ 368 315 282 241 199 835 2240
Total (14 9) 319 282 3916 199 5963 10530
1 Rep 11s the T pay ts to which we were commuitted under operating leases

Cperating leases relate principally to properties which constituted 99%
(£222m} of our total minimum operating lease commitments There are
also a few remaining operating leases relating to the vehicle fleet which
constituted the remaining 1% (£2m) of such commitments

Except for the off balance sheet operating leases described above, £19m
{$29m) of standby letters of credit 1ssued at 30 April 2010 under the first
priority sentor debt facility relating to the Group’s insurance programmes
and $1 3m of performance bonds granted by Sunbelt, we have no matenal
commitments that we could be obligated to pay in the future which are
not included in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet

Presentation of financial information
Currency translation and interest rate exposure

Our reporting currency 1s the pound sterling However, a majonity of
our assets, habilities, revenue and costs are denomtnated in US dollars
Fluctuations in the value of the US dollar with respect to the pound
sterling have had, and may continue to have, a significant impact on
our financial condition and results of operations as reported in pounds
sterling due to the majornity of our assets, liabilities, revenue and costs
being denominated in US dollars

We have arranged our financing so that 100% of our debt was denominated
in US dollars at 30 April 2010 At that date, dollar-denominated debt
represented approximately 82% of the value of dollar-denominated net
assets (other than debt) providing a partial, but substantial, hedge against
the translation effects of changes in the dollar exchange rate

The dollar interest payable on this debt atso imits the impact of changes
in the dollar exchange rate on our pre-tax profits and earmings Based on
the currency mix of our profits currently prevailing and on current dollar
debt levels and interest rates, every 1% change in the US dollar exchange
rate would impact pre-tax profit by £40,000

Revenue

Our revenue 1s a function of our prices and the size, utilisation and mix of our
equipment rental fleet. The pnces we charge are affected n large measure
by utdisation and the relative attractiveness of our rental equipment, while
utidisation 15 deterrmined by market size and our market share, as well as
general economic condinons Utilsation 1s time-based utilisation which 1s
calculated as the onginal cost of equipment on rent as a percentage of the
total value of equipment n the fleet at the measurement date in the US, we
measure time utilisation on those items in our fleet with an onginal cost of
$7.500 or more which constituted 90% of our US senalised rental equipment
at 30 Apnl 2010 In the UK, ime utilisation 1s measured for all our senialised
rental equipment. The size, mix and relative attractiveness of our rental
equipment fleet 15 affected significantly by the level of our capital expenditure

The main components of our revenue are

+ revenue from equipment rentals, including related revenue such as the

feas we charge for equipment delivery, erection and dismantling services
for our scaffolding rentals, fuel provided with the equipment we rent
to customners, and loss damage waiver and environmental fees,

= revenue from sales of new merchandise, including sales of parts and

revenues from a imited number of sales of new equipment, and

« revenue from the sale of used rental equipment

Costs
The main components of our totat costs are

*

staff costs —staff costs at our stores as well as at our central support
offices represent the largest single component of our total costs Staff
costs consist of salartes, profit share and bonuses, social security costs,
and other pension costs, and comprised 35% of our total operating
costs tn the year ended 30 April 2010,

used rental equipment sold which comprises the net book value of

the used equipment sold in the year as it was stated in our accounts
immed:ately prior to the time at which it was sold and any direct costs
of disposal, comprised 3% of our operating costs 1n the year ended

30 April 2010,

other operating costs — comprised 38% of total costs in the year ended
30 Apnil 2010 These costs include

- spare parts, consumables and outside repair costs — costs incurred for
the purchase of spare parts used by our workshop staff to maintain
and repaur our rental equipment as well as outside reparr costs,

— facilities costs — rental payments on leased facilitres as well as utility
costs and local property taxes relating to these facilities,

— vehicle costs ~ costs incurred for the purchase, mantenance and
operation of our vehicle fleet, which censists of our delivery trucks,
the light commercial vehicles used by our mobile workshop staff
and cars used by our sales force, store managers and other
management staff,

- other costs - all other costs incurred m operating our business,
including the costs of new equipment and merchandise sold,
advertising costs and bad debt expense,

deprecration — the depreciation of our property, plant and equipment,
ncluding rental equipment, compnised 24% of total costs in the year
ended 30 Apnl 2010




A large proportion of our costs are fixed in the short to mediem term,
and matenal adjustments in the size of our cost base typically resuit only
from openings or closures of one or more of our stores Accordingly, our
business model 15 such that small increases or reductions I our revenue
can result in littte or no change in our costs and often therefore have a
disproportionate impact on our profits We refer to this feature of our
business as ‘operational leverage’

Critical accounting policies

We prepare and present our financial statements tn accordance with
applicable tnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) In applying
many accounting principles, we need to make assumptions, estimates and
Judgernents These assumpuions, estimates and judgements are often
subjective and may be affected by changing circumstarices or changes i our
analysis Changes in these assumptions estimates and judgements have the
potential to matenally affect our results We have identified below those of
our accounting policies that we believe would most likely produce matenally
different results were we to change underlying assumptions, estmates and
Judgements These policies have been applied consistently

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the total amount receivable for the provision of goods
and services to customers net of returns and value added tax Rental
revenue, including loss damage waiver and environmental fees, 1s recognised
on a straight-hine basis over the period of the rental contract. Because the
terms and condittons of a rental contract can extend across financial
reporting periods, the Group records unbilled rental revenue and deferred
revenue at the beginring and end of the reporting penods so rental revenue
1s appropriately stated in the financial statements

Revenue from rental equipment debivery and collection i1s recognised when
delivery or collection has occurred and is recorded as rental revenue

Revenue from the sale of rental equipment, new equipment, parts and
supplies, retail merchandise and fuel is recognised at the time of delivery
to, or collection by, the customer and when alt obligations under the sales
contract have been fulfilled

Revenue from sales of rental equipment in connection with trade-in
arrangements with certain manufacturers from whom the Group
purchases new equipment are accounted for at the lower of transaction
value or fair value based on independent appraisals If the trade-in price
of a unit of equipment exceeds the fair market value of that urut, the
excess Is accounted for as a reduction of the cost of the related purchase
of new rental equipment

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

We record expenditure for property, plant and equipment at cost ‘We
depreciate equipment using the straight-bne method over its estmated
useful economic bfe {which ranges from three to 20 years with a weighted
average life of eight years) We use an estimated residual value of 10% of
cost in respect of most types of our rental equipment, although the range
of residual values used varies between zero and 30% We establish our
estimates of useful life and residuat value with the objective of allocating
most appropriately the cost of property, plant and equipment to our
profit and loss account, over the perod we anticipate 1t will be used in
our business

We may need to change these estimates if expenence shows that the
current estimates are not achieving this objective If these estimates
change in the future, we may then need to recognise increased or
decreased depreaation expense Our total depreciation expense in
the year ended 30 Apnl 2010 was £187m

tmpairment of assets

Goodwill 1s not amortised but s tested annually for imparment at 30 Apnl.
Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable Ansmpairment loss 15
recogrised in the income statement for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets 2re grouped at the towest level for which
there are separately identifiable and independent cash flows for the
asset being tested for impairment In the case of goodwll, impairment

1s assessed at the level of the Group's reporting units The recoverable
amount s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value

In use

Management necessanly applies its judgement 1n estimating the timing
and value of underlying cash fows wathun the value 1n use calculation as
well as determining the appropriate discount rate Subsequent changes
to the magnitude and timing of cash flows could impact the carrying
value of the respective assets

Self-insurance

We establish provisions at the end of each financial year to cover our
estimate of the discounted lability for urunsured retained nisks on unpaid
claims ansing out of events occurnng up to the end of the financial year
The estimate includes events ncurred but not reported at the balance
sheet date The provision 1s established ustng advice recewved from
external actuartes who help us extrapolate historical trends and estimate
the most likely tevel of future expense which we wall incur on outstanding
claims These estimates may however change, based on varying
arcumstances, including changes in our expenience of the costs we Incur
tn settling claims over time Accordingly, we may be required to increase
or decrease the pravision held for self-insured retained nsk. At 30 Apnl
2010, the total provision for self-insurance recorded in our consolidated
balance sheet was £22m (2009 £27m)

S S

Geoff Drabble lan Robson
Chief executive Finance drector
16 June 2070
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1 Chris Cole

Non-executive chairman® @

Aged 63, Chris Cole has been a director since January 2002 and was
appointed as non-executive chairman in March 2007 Chris is chairman
of the Nomination Comruttee and a member of the Finance and
Adrministration Committee He s chief executive of WSP Group plc

Executive directors

2 Geoff Drabble

Chief executrve @ ®

Aged 50, Geoff Drabble was appomnted as chief executive in January
2007, having served as chuef executive designate from October 2006
and as a non-executive director since April 2005 Geoff was previously
an executive director of The Laird Group PLC where he was responsible
for 1ts Building Products dmsion Prior to joiing The Laird Group, he held
a number of senior management positions at Black & Decker Geoff is
chairman of the Finance and Administratton Commuttee and a member
of the Normination Committee

3 lanRobson

Finance director ®

Aged 51, lan Robson has been finance director since June 2000 Prior

to June 2000, lan held a series of senior financial positions at Reuters
Group plc for four years Before joining Reuters Group plc, he was a partner
at Price Waterhouse (now PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP} lan 15 a member
of the Finance and Administration Commuttee

4 foePhelan

President and chief executive officer, Sunbelt

Aged 53, Joe Phelan was appointed a director in April 2009 joe was
formerly the chief executive officer of DHL Global Mail based 1in Weston,
Florida and was also a member of Deutsche Post’s executive committee
Prior to joining DHL tn 2004, he held a number of senior executive
positions with American Arrlines Joe 1s an American citizen and lives

in Charlotte, North Carolina

5 Sat Dhaiwal

Chief executive officer, A-Plant

Apged 41, Sat Dhaiwal has been chief executive officer of A-Plant and a
director since March 2002 Sat was managing director of A-Plant East,
one of A-Plant’s four operational regions, from May 1998 to March 2002
Before that he was an A-Plant trading director from 1995 and, prior to
1995, managed one of A-Plant’s stores

Non-executive directors

6 Hugh Etheridge

Senior independent non-executive director ®® @

Aged 60, Hugh Ethenidge has been a director, chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration and Nomination
Commuttees since January 2004 Hugh was appointed as senuor independent
non-executive director in March 2007 He 1s chief financial officer of

the Waste and Resources Action Programme ("WRAP'), a non-profit
organisation established by the UK Government to promote sustanable
waste management Before joining WRAP, he was finance director of
Waste Recycling Group ple and prior to that, of Matthew Clark plc.

7 Garylceton

Independent non-executive director ® 9 @

Aged 60, Gary lceton was appoiated as a non-executive director and

a member of the Audit and Nomination Commuttees effective from
September 2004 Gary also became chairman of the Remuneration
Committee in March 2007 Until 2000 he was a director of 5t Ives plc
and chairman and chief executive of its Books Dvision More recently, he
was chairman of Jarrold Limited and, prior to that, chref executive officer
of Amertrans With effect from April 2008 he has also been a director
of Norfolk Education Industry & Commerce Group Limited Having
completed two full terms as a non-executive director, Gary will be
standing down from the Board at the 2010 Annual General Meeting

8 Michael Burrow

Independent non-executive drector® 8 @

Aged 57, Michael Burrow was appointed as a non-executive director
and member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees
effective from March 2007 Michael was formerly managing director
of the Investment Banking Group of Lehrman Brothers Europe Limited

9 Bruce Edwards

Independent non-executive director ®

Aged 55, Bruce Edwards was appointed as a non-executive director in
June 2007 and a member of the Nomination Committee effective

from February 2009 Bruce 15 the global chief executive officer for Exel
Supply Chain at Deutsche Post World Net, and a member of its board

of management He joined DPWN following ts acquisition of Exel PLC in
December 2005 Prior to the acquisition, he was a director of Exel PLC and
chief executive of its Americas businesses Bruce is also a non-executive
director of Greif Inc, a NYSE-bsted packaging and container manufacturer
He Is an American atizen and lves in Columbus, Chio

Details of the directors’ contracts, emoluments and share interests can
be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Key"

o Audit Commuttee

& Remuneration Committee

o Nomination Committee

e Finance and Administration Cormmittee
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directors’ report

The directors present their report and the audited accounts for the
financial year ended 30 April 2010

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is that of an investment holding
and management company The principal activity of the Group is the
rental of equipment to ndustnial and commercial users mainly in the
non-residential construction sectors of the US and the UK

Trading results and dividends

The Group's consolidated profit before taxation for the year was

£4 8m (2009 £0 8m) A review of the Group's performance and future
development, including the principal risks and uncertainties facing the

Group, 1s given 1n the Business and Financial Review on pages 23 to 25

and 1n note 23 to the financial statements These disclosures form part

of this report The Company paid an intenim dividend of 0 9p per ordinary

share in February and the directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of 2 Op per ordinary share, to be paid on 10 September 2010 to
those shareholders on the register at the close of business on 20 August
2010, makimng a total dividend for the year of 2 9p (2009 2 575p)

Share capital and major shareholders
Details of the Company's share capital are given in note 19 to the
financial statements

Voting rights

Subject to the Articles of Association, every member who s present

in person at a general meeting shall have one vote and on a poll every
member who s present in person or by proxy shall have one vote

for every share of which he or she 1s the holder The Trustees of the
Employee Share Ownership Trust ordinarily follow the guidelines issued
by the Association of British Insurers and do not exercise their nght

to vote at general meetings

Under the Companies Act, members are entitled to appoint a proxy,

who need not be a member of the Company, to exercise all or any of their

nghts to attend and speak and vote on thewr behalf at a general meeting
or any class of meeting A member may appoint more than one proxy
provided that each proxy 15 appointed to exercise the rights attached to

a different share or shares held by that member A corporate member may

appeint one or more iIndividuals to act on its behalf at a general meeting

or any class of meeting as a corporate representative The deadline for the

exercise of voting nghts is as stated m the notice of the relevant meeting

Transfer of shares

Certified shares

(1) A share transfer form cannot be used to transfer more than one class
of share Each class needs a separate form

{n) Transfers may be in favour of more than four joint hoiders, but the
directors can refuse to register such a transfer

() The share transfer form must be delivered to the registered office,
or any other place decided on by the directors The transfer form must
be accompanied by the share certificate relating to the shares being
transferred, unless the transfer 1s being made by a person to whom
the Company was not required to, and did not send, a certificate
The directors can also ask (acting reasonably} for any other evidence
to show that the person wishing to transfer the shares is entitled
to do so

CREST shares
{1} Regustration of CREST shares can be refused in the circumstances
set out in the Uncertified Secunities Regulations

(1) Transfers cannot be 1n favour of more than four joint holders

Based on notdications received the holdings of 3% or more of the 1ssued
share capital of the Company as at 15 June 2010 {the latest practicable
date before approval of the financial statements) are as follows

-

I T T, ey )

Aegon Asset Management

Aviva plc

Artermts Investment Management
Amenpnse Financial, Inc
BlackRock, inc

Legal & General

Details of dwectors’ interests in the Company's ordinary share capital and
In options over that share capital are given in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 38 to 43 Details of all shares subject to option are given
in the notes to the financial statements on page 67




Change of control provisions in loan

agreements

A change in control of the Company (defined, inter alia, as a personora
group of persons acting in concert gaining control of more than 30% of
the Company’s voting rights) leads to an immediate event of default under
the Company's asset-based senior lending facility tn such arcumstances,
the agent for the lending group may, and if so directed by more than 50%
of the lenders shall, declare the amounts cutstanding under the facility
immediately due and payable

Such a change of control also leads to an obligation, within 30 days of
the change in control, for the Croup to make an offer ta the holders of the
Group's senior secured notes to redeem them at 101% of their combined
face value of $800m

Directors and directors’ insurance

Details of the directors of the Company are given on pages 32 and 33
The policies related to their appomtment and replacement are detailed
on pages 36 and 37 Each of the directors as at the date of approval of this
report confirms, as required by section 418 of the Companies Act 2006
that to the best of their knowledge and belief

(1) there 15 no significant information known to the director relevant to
the audit, of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

{2) each director has taken reasonable steps to make himself aware of such
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of it

The Company has mantained insurance throughout the year to cover all
directors against labilities in relation to the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings

Policy on payment of suppliers

Suppliers are paid in accordance with the individual payment terms agreed
with each of them The number of Group creditor days at 30 April 2010
was 88 days (30 Apnl 2009 53 days) which reflects the terms agreed with
individual suppliers There were na trade creditors 1n the Company's
balance sheet at any ime during the past two years

Political and charitable donations
Charitable donations In the year amounted to £138,991 in total
(2009 £55,329) No polittcal donations were made in either year

Auditors

Delortte LLP has indicated its willngness to contmue in office and in
accordance with section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution
concerming 1ts reappointment and authonising the directors to fix its
remuneration, will be proposed at the Annual Generat Meeting

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at 2 00pm on Tuesday,

7 September 2010 Notice of themeeting is set out in the document
accompanying this Report and Accounts

In addition to the adoption of the 2009/10 Report and Accounts, the
declaration of a final dividend, resolutions dealing with the appointment
and re-election of directors and the resolution dealing with the approval
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report, there are seven other matters
which will be considered at the Annual General Meeting These relate

to the reappointment and remuneration of Deloitte LLP as auditors, the
ability for the directors to uncondiionally allot shares up to approximately
two-thirds of the Company's share capital, the disapplication of pre-emption
nights in relation to the previous resolution, empowering the Company

to buy back up to 15% of 1ts issued share capital, amendments to the
Company’s Articles of Association and the abitity to call a meeting other
than a general meeting on not less than 14 days’ clear notice The
majority of these resolutions update for a further year similar resolutions
approved by shareholders in previous years

By order of the Board

Eric Watkins
Company Secretary
16 June 2010
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The revised Combined Code on corporate governance was published in
June 2006 following a review by the Financial Reporting Counail ('the
Code’) The Company complied throughout the year with the provisions
of the Code

The Company 1s commutted to mamntaining high standards of corporate
governance The Board recogrises that it is accountable to the Company’s
shareholders for corporate governance and this statement describes how
the Company has applied the relevant principles of the Code

The Board

The Company's Board comprises the non-executive chairman, the chief
executive, the finance director, the executive heads of Sunbelt and
A-Plant, the serior independent non-executive director and three other
independent non-executive directors Short brographies of the directors
are given on page 33

The chairman undertakes teadership of the Board by agreeing Board
agendas and encourages its effectiveness by the prowision of timely,
accurate and clear information on all aspects of the Group’s business,
to enable the Board to take sound decisions and promote the success
of the business The chairman, assisted by other directors, reviews the
effectiveness of each member of the Board no less than annually and
factlitates constructive relationships between the executive and non-
executive directors through both formal and informal meetings

The chairman ensures that all directors are briefed properly to enable
them to discharge their duties effectively All newly appointed directors
undertake an induction to all parts of the Group’s business Addiionally,
detailed management accounts are sent menthly to all Board members
and, 1n advance of all Board meetings, an agenda and appropriate
documentation in respect of each itemn to be discussed is crculated

The charrman facilitates effective communication with shareholders
through both the annual general meeting and by individual meetings
with major shareholders, to develop an understanding of the views of
the investors in the business He also ensures that shareholders have
access to other directors, including non-executive directors, as appropriate

The chief executive’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of

the Group within a framework of prudent and effective controls, which
enables risk to be assessed and managed The chuef executive undertakes
the leadership and responsibility for the direction and management of
the day-to-day business and conduct of the Group In doing so, the chief
executive’s role includes, but 1s not restricted to, implementing Board
decisions, delegating responsibility, and reporting to the Board regarding
the conduct, actvities and performance of the Group THE chief executive
chairs the Sunbelt and A-Plant board meetings and sets policies and
direct:on to maximise returns to shareholders

All directors are responsible under the law for the proper conduct of the
Company's affairs The directors are also responsible for ensuring that the
strategies proposed by the executive directors are discussed in detail and
assessed critically to ensure they are aligned with the long-term interests
of shareholders and are compatible with the interests of employees,
customers and suppliers The Board has reserved to itself those matters
which reinforce its control of the Company These inctude treasury policy,
acquisitions and disposals, appointment and removal of directors or the
company secretary, appointment and removal of the auditors and approval
of the annual accounts and the quarterly financial reports to shareholders

Regular reports and briefings are provided to the Board, by the executive
directors and the company secretary, to ensure the directors are suitably
briefed to fulfit their roles The Board normally meets six times a year and
there 15 contact between meetings to advance the Company’s activities

It i1s the Board's usual practice to meet at least annually with the boards
of Sunbelt and A-Plant The dwectors also have access to the company
secretary and are able to seek independent advice at the Company’s expense

All directors are subject to election by shareholders at the first annyal
general meeting after their appointment and to re-election thereafter
at intervals of no more than three years Non-executive directors are
appointed for specified terms not exceeding three years and are subject
to re-election and the provision of the Companies Act relating to the
removal of a director

In accordance with the Company's articles of associatian, Chris Cole,
Sat Dhaiwal and lan Robson will offer themselves for re-election to
the Board at the Annual General Meeting In addition, Gary Iceton will
be standing down as a director at the Annual General Meeting, having
completed two full terms as a non-executive director

Non-executive directors

In the recrustment of non-executive directors, it 1s the Company's practice
to utiise the services of an external search consultancy Before appointment,
non-executive directors are required to assure the Board that they can give
the time commitment necessary to fulfi properly their duties, both in
terms of availability to attend meetings and discuss matters on the telephone
and meeting preparation time The non-executives’ letters of appointment
will be avarable for inspection at the Annual General Meeting

The non-executive directors (including the chairman) meet as and when
required in the absence of the executive directors to discuss and appraise
the performance of the Board as a whole and the performance of the
executive directors In accordance with the Code, the non-executive
directors, led by the senior independent non-executive director, also
meet at least annually in the absence of the chairman to discuss and
appraise his performance

Performance evaluation

The performance of the chairman, the chief executive, the Board and its
committees is evaluated, amongst other things, against their respective
role profiles and terms of reference The executive directors are evaluated
additionally against the agreed budget for the generation of revenue,
profit and value to shareholders

The evaluation of the chairman, the Board and 1ts committees was
conducted by way of a questionnaire completed by all of the directors,
the results of which were collated by the company secretary and
presented to the entire Board Based on this evaluation, the Board
concluded that performance in the past year had been satisfactory

Board committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Hugh Ethendge (charman), who

has relevant financial expenence, Gary Iceton and Michael Burrow

By imvitation, the Group's finance director, lan Robson, and its director
of financial reparting, Michael Pratt, normally attend the Cornmittee’s
meetings, as do representatives of our internal and external auditors
Other directors are usually also invited to be present if available

The Audit Committee met on five occasions during the year The principal
areas considered by the Committee since the last annual report included

« the results for the periods ended 31 July 2009, 31 October 2009 and
31 January 2010 and the results for the year ended 30 April 2010,

« the external audit plan and key areas of audit focus for the year ended
30 Apni! 2010,

= reports from the external auditor, Deloitte, related to the results for the
six months ended 31 October 2009 and the year ended 30 April 2010
The Committee considered the work done and the key accounting
estimates and principal Judgemental accounting and reporting 1ssues,




the dependence, objectivity and effectiveness of Deloitte and, tn that
context, the level of audit and non-audit fees paid te them The Committee
was satisfied as to therr independence, objectivity and effectiveness,
arrangements for internal audit during the year ended 30 April 2010
and 2011,

audit plans and reports from the internal operational auditors
responsible for auditing detailed operational controls at a store level,

the Group risk register and reports on the work of the Group

Risk Committes,

the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls and financial
reporting policies, and

reparts on matters referred through the Group’s whistle-blowing
procedures and any actions taken following appropnate wvestigation

The principal non-audit fees paid to the Company's auditors, Deloitte LLP,
for the year relate to therr review of the Cornpany’s interim results and tax
advice The Audit Commuttee Is satisfied that the nature of work undertaken
and the level of non-audit fees did not impair therr independence

Deloitte LLP was appointed external auditor in 2004 In accordance with
APB Ethical Standards, which prevent the engagement partner responstble
for the audit of a public company being involved for more than five years,
the signing partner changed in 2008/9 The Committee 1s again
recommending to the Board that a proposal be put to shareholders at

the 2010 Annual General Meeting for the reappointment of Deloitte
There are no contractual restnctions on the Company’s choice of external
auditor and 1n making its recommendation the Commuttee took into
account, amongst other matters, the objectivity and independence of
Deloitte, as noted above, and their continuing effectiveness and cost

The Audit Committee’s terms of reference will be available for inspection
at the Annual General Meeting

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commmuttee comprises Gary lceton (chairman), Hugh
Etheridge and Michael Burrow, all of whomn served throughout the year
The Committee meets as and when required during the year to set the
compensation packages for the executive directors, to establish the
terms and condittons of the executrve directors’ employment and to set
remuneration policy generally Chris Cole and Geoff Drabble normally
attend the meetings of the Cornmuttee to assist it in its work. The
Comnrnittee also engages remuneration consultants to advise it 1n

its work as and when required

None of the members of the Remuneration Comruttee Is currently

ar has been at any time one of the Company's executive directors or an
employee None of the executive directors currently serves, or has served,
as a member of the board of directors of any other company which has
one or more of its executive directors serving on the Company's Board

or Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference will be available
for inspection at the Annual General Meeting

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee compnses Chris Cole {chairman),

Geoff Drabble, Hugh Ethertdge, Gary Iceton, Michael Burrow and

Bruce £dwards, all of whom served throughout the year The Nomination
Committee meets as and when required to consider the structure, the
size and composition of the Board of directors

The Nomination Comrmittee’s terms of reference will be avadable for
inspection at the Annual General Meeting

Attendance at Board and Committee meetings held between
1 May 2009 and 30 April 2010

Board Audit Remuneration Normmation
Number of meetings held 7 S 4 1
Chns Cole 7 - - 1
Sat Dhamwal 7 - - -
Geoff Drabble 7 - - 1
Joe Phelan 7 - - -
1an Robson 7 - - -
Michael Burrow 7 5 4 1
Bruce Edwards 7 - - i
Hugh Ethendge 7 5 4 !
Gary Iceton 7 4 4 1

Finance and Administration Committee

The Finance and Administratton Committee comprises Chns Cole,

Geoff Drabble (charrman) and lan Robson The Board of directors has
delegated authority to this Committee to deal with routine finanaal and
admunistrative matters between Board meetings The Committee meets
as necessary to perform 1ts role and has a quorum requirement of two
mermbers with certain matters requinng the participation of Chnis Cole,
non-executive chairman, including, for example, the approval of material
announcements to the London Stock Exchange

Internal control

The directors acknowledge ther responsibility for the Group's systemn

of internal contrel and confirm they have reviewed its effectiveness In
dotng so, the Group has taken note of the relevant guidance for directors,
namely Internat Control Gurdance for Directors on the Combined Code
(‘the Turnbull Guidance’)

The Board confirms that there is 3 process for identifying, evaluating and
managing stgnificant risks faced by the Group This process has been tn
place for the full inrancial year and 15 angoing Under its terms of reference
the Group Risk Management Commuttee, which was formed last year,
meets semi-annually or more frequently if required, with the objective

of encouraging best nisk management practice across the Group and a
culture of regulatory compliance and ethical behaviour The Group Risk
Management Committee reports annually to the Audit Committee

These processes accord with the Turnbull Guidance

The Board considers that the Group’s internal control system 15 designed
appropnately to manage, rather than elminate, the nisk of failure to
achieve business objectives Any such control system, however, can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss

The Group reviews the risks it faces in its business and how these nisks

are managed These reviews are conducted in conjunction with the
management teams of each of the Croup’s businesses and are documented
in an annual report. The reviews consider whether any matters have anisen
since the last report was prepared which might indicate omissions or
nadequacies in that assessment It also considers whether, as a result of
changes in either the internal or external environment, any new significant
risks have ansen The executive directors reviewed the draft report for
2010, which was then presented to, discussed and approved by the Audit
Committee and by the Group Board on 14 June 2010

Before producing the statement on intemnal control for the annual report
and accounts for the year ended 30 April 2010, the Board reconsidered
the operational effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems

In particular, through the Audit Committee, it recerved reports from the
operational audit teams and cansidered the status of implementation

of internal control improvement recommendations made by the Group's
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internal auditors and its external auchtors The control system includes

written policies and control procedures, clearly drawn lines of accountability

and delegation of authority, and comprehensive reporting and analysis
against budgets and latest forecasts

in a group of the size, complexity and geographical diversity of Ashtead,

minor breakdowns in established control procedures can occur There are

supporting policies and procedures for investigation and management
of control breakdowns at any of the Group's profit centres or elsewhere
The Audit Committee also meets regularly with the external auditors to
discuss their work

{n relation to internal finanaial control, the Group's control and monitoring
procedures include

the maintenance and production of accurate and timely financial
management infarmation, including a monthly profit and loss account
and selected balance sheet data for each store,

the control of key financial risks through clearly taid down authority
levels and proper segregation of accounting duties at the Group's
accounting support centres,

the preparation of a monthly financial report to the Board, including
income statements for the Group and each subsidiary, balance sheet
and cash flow statement,

the preparation of an annual budget and periodic update forecasts
which are reviewed by the executive directors and then by the Board,

on a sample basis by our operational auditors and external auditors,
detailed internal audits at the Group’s major accounting centres
undertaken periodically by internal audit specialists from a major
international accounting firen,

comprehensive audtts at the stores generally carried out annuaily

by internal operational audit A summary of this work 1s provided
annuglly to the Audit Committee, and

a review of arrangements by which staff may, in confidence, raise
concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting
or other matters

*

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for
the Group in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{'IFRS’} as adopted by the European Unton and Article 4 of the [AS
Regulattons and have also elected to prepare financial statements for the
Company in accordance with IFRS Company law requires the directors
to prepare such finanaal statements in accordance with IFRS and the
Companies Act

Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts unless

they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs

of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod
IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, requires that financial
statements present farirly for each financial year the Company's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows This requires the
representation of the effects of transactions, as well as other events and
conditions, In accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria
for assets, labilities, iIncome and expenses set aut in the International
Accounting Standards Board's Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements In virtually all circumnstances,

a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable

International Financial Reporting Standards Directars are also required to

a programme of rental equipment inventories and full inventory counts
conducted at each profit centre by equipment type independently checked

= properly select and apply accounting policres,
+ present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information,
* provide additional disclosures when comphiance with the specific
requirernents in IFRS 15 insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions
on the entity's financral position and financial performance, and
+ make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a
£OINE concem

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and
disctose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregulanties and for the preparation
of a directors’ report and directors’ remuneration report which comply
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

The Board confirms to the best of its knowledge

» the consolidated financial staternents, prepared in accordance with
IFRS as Issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
IFRS as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group, and

» the Directors' Report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Group, together
with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces

Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legistation i other junsdictions

Going concern

The Group's operations and financial conditton, together with factors likely
to affect its future development, performance and condition are set out

in the Business and Financial Review on pages 6 to 31 In particular, the
Group’s financial management and cash flow, including details of the Group's
banking facilites are set out on pages 28 to 30 In addition, note 23 to the
financial statements describes the Group’s financial sk management
pelicies and processes, including its expasure to interest rate risk, currency
exchange nisk, credit nsk and lquidity risk

The Group's debt facilities are committed for a weighted average period

of five years as of 30 April 2010 with the earliest significant maturity being
the ABL facility which continues until November 2013 The Group finances
its day-to-day activity via the ABL facility under which excess availability
totalled $537m at year end Taking account of reasonably possible changes
in trading performance, used equipment values and the other factors that
might impact avallability, the Group expects to mamtain significant
headroom under the ABL facility for the forthcorming year

After making enquiries, the directors therefore have a reasonable expectation
that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in
operation for the foreseeable future and consequently that it i1s appropriate
to adopt the gaing concern basis in preparing the financial statements

By order of phe Board

Eric Watkins
Company Secretary
16 June 2010




directors’ remuneration report

Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 of the
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (the ‘Regulations’} The report also meets the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and
describes how the Board has applied the Principles of Good Governance
relating to directors’ remuneration As required by the Regulations,

a resolution to approve the report will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company

The Act requires the auditors to report to the Company’s members on
elements of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and to state whether,

in their opimon, that part of the report has beer properly prepared n
accordance with the Accounting Regulations The report has therefore
been divided nto separate sections for audited and unaudited mformation

Unaudited information

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee {'the
Commuttee’) in accordance with the recommendations of the Combined
Code The members of the Committee are Gary fceton {chairman), Hugh
Etheridge and Michael Burrow None of the Committee members has any
personal financial interests, other than as shareholders, in the matters to
be decided

The Group's chief executive, Geoff Drabble, normally attends the
meetings of the Committee to advise on operational aspects of the
implementation of existing polictes and policy proposals, except where
his own remuneration is concerned, as does the non-executive chairman,
Chris Cole The company secretary acts as secretary to the Committee
Under Gary iceton's direction, the company secretary and Geoff Drabble
have responsibility for ensuring the Commuttee has the information
relevant 1o 1ts deliberations In formutating its policies, the Commuttee
has access to professional advice from outside the Company, as required,
and to publicly available reports and statistics External professtonal
advice was obtained in the year from Hewitt New Bridge Street (HNBS)
with respect to current remuneration trends in FTSE 250 companies

Remuneration policy for executive directors

Executive remuneration packages are designed to attract, motvate

and retain directors of the high calibre needed to achieve the Group's
objectives and to reward them for enhancing value to shareholders

The main elements of the remuneration package for executive directors
and senior management are

« basic annual salary and benefits in kind,
« annual performance related bonus plan,
= Performance Share Plan awards, and

« pension arrangements

In assessing all aspects of pay and benefits, the Company compares
packages offered by stmilar compantes, which are chosen having regard to

+ the size of the company (enterprise value, revenues, profits and number
of employees),

= the diversity and complexity of its businesses,

» the geographical spread of its businesses, and

+ therr growth, expansion and change profile

In making the comparisons, the Company also takes into consideration
the Group’s significant operations in the US where the Company has a
number of large, successful competitors who compete with it for top
management talent

The Commuttee implemnents its remuneration policies by the design

of reward packages for executive directors compnising the appropriate
mix of salary, performance related annual cash incentive bonuses and
share related incentives A significant proportion of the overall package
comprises performance related elements

None of the executive directors hold any outside appointments

Basic salary

An executive director’s basic salary 1s normally determined by the
Commuttee before the start of the year and when an individual changes
position or responsibility In deading appropnate levels, the Comminttee
considers the experience and performance of indwiduals and relationships
across the Board and seeks to be competitive, but fair, using information
drawn from both internal and external sources and taking account of pay
and conditions elsewhere 1 the Company Reflecting the current market
environment and focus on operating costs, for the second successive year,
salaries for 2010/11 will be held a1 thewr 2008/9 level

Annual performance related bonus plan

Under the annual performance related bonus plan for executive directors,
payouts for the year to 30 April 2010 were related directly to profitability
and cash flow and were subject toa cap of 100% of salary The Committee
establishes the objectives that must be met for each financial year if a cash
incentive bonus for that year 1sto be paid In determining bonus parameters,
the Commuttee’s objective 1s to set targets that reflect appropriately
challenging financial performance

The target for Geoff Drabble and lan Rabson relating to profitability was
partially achieved while the target relating to cash flow was fully achieved
As a result they earned 759% of therr maximum bonus entitlernent for the
year The financial targets relevant to Joe Phelan and Sat Dhaiwal depended
on Sunbelt’s and A-Plant’s performance respectively and were also partially
achieved with the result that they each earned 50% of ther maximurm bonus

For the year to 30 April 2011, executive directors’ performance related
bonuses will be subject to a cap of 100% of salary with 50% of bonus
potentiat based on profitability targets and 50% on cash generation targets

Share-based incentives and dilution limits

The Company observes an overal ditution lirmit of 10% i 10 years for
all Company share schemes, together with a limit of 5% 1n 10 years
for discretionary schemes

Detalls of the Company’s share-based incentives are set out below

Previous plans

A Executive share option schemes

Until 2002, 1t was the Commuttee’s policy to make regular awards under
the Cormpany'’s executive share option plans to senior staff No awards
have been granted under this plan since February 2002 Shareholder
approval for this plan had been granted in 1996 and accordingly the plan
formally lapsed in October 2006

B Investment Incentive Plan

The Committee has not made any awards under this plan since 2004/5
and the Company does not intend to make further awards under this plan,
which lapses in 2011

Current plan — Performance Share Plan

Under the Performance Share Plan ('PSP’) executwve directors and other
members of the senior management team may annually be awarded a
conditional right to acquire shares (‘performance shares’) the vesting of
which depends on the satisfaction of demanding performance conditions
Performance conditions are based on Total Sharehotder Return {'TSR’)
and/ar Earmings Per Share (‘EPS)

In recent years, the policy has been to grant awards of shares with a
market value at the date of grant equal to between 20% and 100% of the
participant’s base salary with the executive directors typecally receiving
the upper end of this range Following approval of the amendment to the
Perforrance Share Plan Rules at the 2008 Annual General Meeting, Geoff
Drabble’s 2009 award was 150% of his base salary as at the date of grant

As agreed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committees prior to Joe
Phelan joining the Group, Joe's 2009 PSP award was enhanced by around
15% ({$80,000) above the usual 100% of base salary to compensate him
for incentives lost when he left his previous employment The 2009
awards for the other executive directors were at 100% of base salary
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The performance criteria vary by year of award and are as follows

Performance crtena {measured aver three years)

Award date Financial year EPS (% of award} TSR [% of award) Status
6/10/04 2004/5 2006/7 EPS between 5p (12 5% vested) From award date versus FTSE Small Cap Vested in full in October 2007
and 8p (50% vested) (12 5% at median, 50% at upper quarile)
17/8/05 2005/6 2007/8 EPS between 7 7p (12 5% vested) From date of grant versus FTSE 250 Index  EPS target met n full and 50% of the
to 9 1p (50% vested) (12 5% at median, 50% at upper quartile)  award vested The remaining 50% lapsed
12/10/06  2006/7 2008/9 EPS — 16 2p (12 5% vested) — 19p (100% vested) Lapsed
30/7/07 2007/8 2009/10 EPS — RPI + 4% pa (30% vested) — RPI + 10% pa {100% vested) Lapsed
14/10/08  2008/9 2010/11EPS —RPI + 0% pa (12 5% vested) From date of grant versus FTSE 250 Index  Not completed
—RPI + 5% pa (50% vested) (12 5% at median, 50% at upper quartile)
13/7/09 2009/10 2011/12 EPS — RPI + 0% (25% vested} From date of grant versus FTSE 250 Index ~ Not completed

(37 5% at median, 75% at upper quartile)

For performance between the lower and upper EPS and TSR ranges, vesting of the award 1s scaled on a straght-line basis

EPS for the purpose of the awards was based on the profit before tax, exceptional items and amortisation of acquired Intangibles tess a notianal 30% tax
charge for awards made for years up to 2006/7 Thereafter awards have been based on EPS computed using the same profit definition less the actual
tax charge included in the accounts The Remuneration Committee considers it most appropriate to measure TSR performance relative to the FTSE 250
{excluding investment trusts) rather than a specific comparator group of companies because there are few direct comparators to the Company listed In

London and because the Company 1s a FTSE 250 company

Following consultation with the Company’s major shareholders in 2008, the Committee reintroduced a TSR performance target for its 2008/9 PSP
awards in addition to an EPS target Given the cychical nature of our business the Commuttee intends to vary the proportion of the performance critera
represented by EPS and TSR over the cycle between 509%/50%, 75%/25% and 25%/75% Forthe forthcaming 20110/11 PSP awards, the Committee

intends that vesting will be based 50% on TSR and 50% on EPS

Sharehalding guidelines

Executive directors are required to retain no fewer than 50% of shares
that vest under the Performance Share Plan (net of taxes) until such
time as a shareholding equivalent to 100% of salary i1s achieved and
thereafter maintained

Employee Share Ownership Trust

The Group has established an Employee Share Ownership Trust (‘ESOT')
to acquire and hold shares in the Company to satisfy potential awards
under the Performance Share Plan At 30 April 2010, the ESOT held a
beneficial interest in 5,669,844 shares

Relative performance

The following graph compares the Company’s TSR performance with the
FTSE 250 Index (excluding investment trusts) over the five years ended
30 April 2010 The FTSE 25015 the Stock Exchange index the Committee
considers to be the most appropriate to the size and scale of the
Company's operations
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Source Thomson Financial

Thus graph shows the value, by 30 April 2010, of £100 invested in Ashtead
plc on 30 Apnl 2005 compared with the value of £100 mvested in the FTSE
250 Index (excluding mvestment trusts) The other points plotted are the
values at intervening financial year ends

Directors’ pension arrangements

The Company makes a payment of 40% of his base salary to Geoff Drabble
i tieu of providing im with any pension arrangements This provision was
agreed prior to his jorning the Company in 2006 and reflected the fact that
he was leaving a generous defined benefit arrangement at his previous
employer His retirement, under his contract, s at age 60

Under the terms of his contract, lan Robson 1s entitled to retire at age 60 on
a pension equat to one-thirtieth of his final salary for each year of pensionable
service lan Robson's contract also contains early retirement provisions
enabling himn to retire at a date of hus choosing and draw a pension based
on actual years of service, but without deduction for early payment These
provisions became effective from May 2010 when he completed 10 years’
service with the Company lan Robson pays contrnbutions equal to 75%

of his salary tothe Retiremnent Benefits Plan Both the accruat rate and

the early retirement provisions were agreed prior to Mr Robson jotning the
Company 1n 2000 and reflected the need to be competitive with simitar
arrangements he enjoyed with his previous employer

Sat Dhaiwal's pension benefits are also provided entirely through the
Ashtead Group plc Retirernent Benefits Plan His pension rights accrue at
the rate of ane-sixtieth of salary (as defined) for each year of pensionable
service and his normal retirement date 1s at age 65 Sat Dhaiwal pays
contributions equal to 7 5% of his salary to the Retirement Benefits Plan

The Retirement Benefits Plan also provides for

ih the event of death n service or death between leaving service and
retirement while retaining membership of the plan, a spouse’s pension
equal to 50% of the member's deferred pension, calculated at the date
of death plus a return of his contributions,

i the event of death 1n retirement, a spouse’s pension equal to 50%

of the member's pension at the date of death,

an option to retire at any time after age 55 with the Company's consent
Early retirement benefits are reduced by an amount agreed between the
actuary and the trustees as reflecting the cost to the plan of the early
retirement, and

pension Increases In ltne with the increase in retail price inflation up

to a imit of currently 5% a year in respect of service since 1997

Joe Phelan receved a payment of 15% of his base salary during his
first year of employment in bieu of providing tum with any pension
arrangements This was reduced to 14% of base salary thereafter

In line with US law no retirement age 1s specified under Joe's contract




Executive directors’ service agreements

The service agreements between the Company and Geoff Drabble (dated 6 July 2006), lan Robson (dated 4 August 2000}, Sat Dhamwal {dated 8 July 2002)
and between Sunbelt and Joe Phelan {dated 20 April 2009} are all terrminable by erther party giving the other 12 months’ notice The service agreements
for each of the executive directors all contain non-compete provisions appropriate to their roles

In accordance with best practice, none of the executive directors’ contracts provide for payment of any bonus for the peniod when notice has been given

Remuneration policy for non-executive directors
The remuneration of the non-executive directors is determined by the Board within imits set outin the Articles of Association None of the non-executive
directors has a service contract with the Company and their appointrment is therefore terminable by the Board at any time

An ordinary resolution concerning the Group's remuneration policies will be put to shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,

Audited information

Directors’ remuneration
The total amount of directors’ remuneration was £2,998,000 (2009 £2,309,000} and consisted of emoluments of £2,919,000 (2009 £2,140,000),
gains on exercise of share options of £79,000 (2009 £45,000) and £nil (2009 £124,000) recervable under long-term incentive plans

The emoluments of the directors, excluding pension benefits, which are included in staff costs in note 3 to the financial statements, were as follows

Perforrnance Benefits Total Total
relsted n Other ermolments emoluments
Salary Fees borus kn® allovances® 2010 2009
Name £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive
Sat Dhamwal 220 - 110 1 14 345 235
Geoff Drabble 456 - 342 ER| 208 1037 826
Joe Phelan 325 - 162 11 163 661 7
lan Robson 328 - 246 1 1 586 422
Non-executve
Chnis Cole - 110 - - - 110 110
Michael Burrow - 40 - - - 40 40
Bruce Edwards - 40 - - - 40 40
Hugh Ethendge - 55 - - - 55 55
Gary lceton - 45 - - - 45 45
Former director
Cliff Miller™ - - - - - - 360
1329 290 860 a4 396 2919 2,140
2009 1315 290 196 44 295 2,140

{) Benefits in kind comprise the taxable benafit of company awned cars private medical insurance and subscriptions

{u) Other all es include car all es, travel and accornmadation allowances and the payment of 40% of satary iy lteu of pensian contributions for Geoff Drabble and 15% for Joe Phetan

{iii) In accordance with the terms and conditions of his service contract and the Company having recewed an executed severance and release agreement and conditional on his observing the non-compete and
non-solicit provisions In his service contract, CLff Miller was paid his base salary for a penod of 12 months from the terrmination of s employment This equated to £340000 and although provided in
the 2008/9 finanaial statements. was paid In full during the year ended 30 Apnl 2010 No further payments are due with respect to Clff Miller s departure In accordance with the rules of the plan, he
ramains a participant in the Performance Share Plan in respect of previous awards on a pro rata basis up to his date of depariwre

Key management

In accordance with IAS 24 — Related Party Disclosures, key management personnel are those persons having authonty and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly The Group's key management comprise the Company’s executive and
non-executive directors

Compensation for key management was as follows

2010 2009
£000 £000

Salanes and short-term emplayee benefits 2919 2,140
Post-employment benefits 101 93
National insurance and social secunty 253 288
Share-based payments 265 (938)
3,538 1,583
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directors’ remuneration report ...

Directors’ pension benefits

Transfer Transfer
Acaued Acoued Increase m annual value of value of Increass
Age at pensionable Contnbutions annual ston dunng the year accrued accrued n transfer
30 Apnl service at paid by the persion at Exduding Total pension at pension at value over
2010 304pnl 2010 director 30 April 2010 nflation ncrease 30 Apnt 2010 30 Apnl| 2009 the year
Years Years £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Sat Dhamwval 41 16 17 58 5 5 448 357 74
{an Robson 51 10 25 103 10 0 1,790 1,392 373

Notes
{1) The transfer values represent the amount which would have been paid to another pension scheme had the director elected to take a transfer of his accrued pension entitlement at that date and have been caloulated

by the scheme s actuaries in accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note GN11 published by the Institute of Actuanes and the Facully of Actuanes They are not sums paid or due to the directors concerned
{2) The increase in transfer value in the year s stated net of the members contributions

Prior to his departure in Apnil 2009, Cliff Miller had deferred part of hus annual salary and bonus in the Sunbelt deferred compensation plan At 30 April
20083, the outstanding balance in the plan due to Cliff was $145,570 or £98,239 During 2009/10, Cliff withdrew all the remaining balance of $145,570

Directors’ interests in shares
The directars of the Company are shown below together with their beneficial interests n the share capital of the Company
30Apri 2010 304pnl 2009
Number of Number of
ordinary shares  ondinary shares
of 10p each of 10p each
100,000 100,000

Michael Burrow

Chns Cole 77,082 77,082
Sat Dhawal 365,849 365,849
Geoff Drabble 361,357 361,357
Bruce Edwards 40,000 40,000
Hugh Ethendge 20,000 20,000
Gary lceton 49,082 49,082
Joe Phelan - —
fan Robson 1,514,829 1,480,092
The directors had no non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company
Performance Share Plan awards
Shares held by executive directors and by a former dwector, Cuff Miller, under the PSP are shown in the table below
Held at Exercised  Granted/{lapsed) Held at
Year of grant 30 April 2009 dunng year  dunng the year 30 Agxil 2010
Sat Dhawal 2006/7 90,468 - (90.468) -
2007/8 116,418 - - 116,418*
2008/9 384,279 - — 384279
2009/10 - 405,530 405,530
Geoff Drabble 2006/7 264,943 - (264943} -
2007/8 320,896 - - 320,896*
2008/9 1,194,760 - — 1,194,760
2009/10 ~ 1260825 1,260,829
joe Phelan 2009/10 — — 686,735 686,735
lan Robson 2006/7 193,861 - {193.867) -
2007/8 235,075 - - 235075
2008/9 5720052 - - 572,052
2009/10 - 603,687 603,687
Former director 2006/7 174047 - (174047 -
CLff Mller 2007/8 107,973 - ~ 107,973
2008/9 83,557 - - 83,557*

* Subsequent to 30 April 2010 the Rernuneration Comimuttee determined that the performance conditians attaching ta the 2007/8 PSP grant had not been achieved and these grants have now aiso lapsed

n their entirety

+ In the case of COff Miller at the date of termination of employment on 6 April 2009 The PSP awards have been pro-rated in accordance with the PSP rules

The performance conditions attaching to the Performance Share Plan referred to above are detailed on pages 39 and 40




Directors’ interests in share options

Options at Exevrssed Lapsed Ophon xt Earbest normal
TMay dumg dumig 30April Exercee exerose
2009 year year 2010 pnce date Expery
Discretionary schemnes
Sat Dhamwal 37941 - - 37941 1153p  Feb 2004 Feb20M
lan Rabson 31,979 (31.979) ~ - 938p Aug2003  Aug 2010
211932 (211932) - - 946p Aug2003  Aug 2010
249,332 - ~ 249332 1153p  Feb2004  Feb 2011
SAYE scheme
Sat Dharwal 4,960 - {4.960) - 122p  Sep2009  Feb 2010
Details of share options exercised by the executive directors in the year are as foliows
Number Exmrene Opuon Market pce at Gam
exerced date pnce date of exerose £ 000
lan Robson 31979 26 April 2010 93 8p 1268p 1
211932 26Apnl 2010 94 6p 126 8p 68

On exercise on 26 Apnt 2010 of the share options enginally awarded to him in August 2000, lan Robson sold 209,174 shares to generate net proceeds
equal to the exercise price and the income tax and national insurance on the exercise He retaned the remaining 34,737 shares

Sat Dhaiwal's interest in 54,202 units in the Company’s Cash Incentive Scheme granted to himin February 2000 lapsed in February 20710 with no

payment being due

The market price of the Company's shares at the end of the financial year was 119p and the highest and lowest clostng prices during the financial year

were 125p and 48p respectively

This report has been approved by the Remuneration Committee and 1s signed on 1ts behalf by

1022 10

Chairman, Remuneration Committee
16 June 2010
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corporate responsibility report

Objectives and management structure
Ashtead 1s committed to operating in a safe, ethical and responsible
manner in all its endeavours We place hugh priority on compliance with
our legislative and regulatory obligations and on maintaining the safety
of our workforce across the Group

Our Group Risk Committee Is charged with overseeing the Group's
environmental, health and safety and risk management processes
and ensuring that the efforts of Sunbelt and A-Plant are co-ordinated
so that best practice in one business can be adopted by the other
The Group Risk Committee reports to the Group chief executive and
the Audit Committee

It is chaired by an executive director of Ashtead Group plc, currently
lan Robson, with its other members being

» the heads of Sunbelt’s and A-Plant’s risk and safety teams,

= UK and US legal counsel,

* the heads of Sunbelt’s and A-Plant’s performance standards (internal
operational audit) teams, and

» the Sunbelt board member to whom its legal council and safety
director report

The Group Risk Committee provides the Audit Committee, and through

it the Board, with a comprehensive annual report on its activities including
details of the areas identified in the year as requiring improvement and the
status of actions being taken to make the necessary improvements In this
way we are able to ensure that there is an effective ‘chain of command’
within the business in relation to environmental, health and safety and
risk management issues

Health and safety

We have extensive programmes to develop and maintain safe working
practices across the Group and to remind our employees of the need to

be safe at all times We also spend significant time drawing our customers’

attention to the importance of these issues for their own employees A
copy of the relevant formal statement of Sunbelt's and A-Plant’s policres
on health and safety 1s required to be displayed at each store We make
a considerable annual investment in ensuning that our rental equipment
meets or exceeds the latest safety standards, as well as providing health
and safety advice and matenals, as required, to accompany each rental

Evidence of this commitment was given when shortly prior to year end,
A-Plant was advised by the British Standards Institute that it had achieved
1SO 9001 (the Quality Standard) accreditation across all its operations
This 1s 1 additron to the 1SO 14001 (Environmental management) and
OHSAS 18001 (Occupational Health & Safety management) accreditations
obtained 1n 2009 These certifications give confidence that we have in
place the appropriate policies, traiming programmes, feedback and auditing
and monitoring processes to minimise our Impact on the environment and
ensure the safety of our workforce

We maintain sizeable internal health and safety teams to ensure that
the correct health and safety precautions are in place throughout our
business We track and analyse any incidents which occur to enable us
to identify recurrent 1ssues and implement preventative improvements
across our UK and US networks

Over the last year, Sunbelt had 414 reported incidents relative to a
workforce of 5,675 (2008 492 incidents relative to a workforce of 6,742)
whilst the UK had 318 incidents relative to a workforce of 1,964 (2009
367 inaidents relative to a workforce of 2,336) An incident for this
purpose does not necessanly mean that an employee was hurt or injured
Rather it represents an event that we want to track and report for
monitering and learning purposes under our health and safety
management policies

Legislatron in the US and UK defines reportable acaidents under rules which
make the datanon-comparable between the two countries but comparable
within each country relative to other businesses Under these definitions
which generally encompass more acaidents in the US than in the UK, Sunbelt
had 231 OSHA (Occupational Health and Safety Administration) recordable
acadents {2009 298 acadents) which, relative to total employee hours
worked, gave a Total Incident Rate {'TIR) of 321 (2009 3 47) In the UK,
A-Plant had 63 RIDDOR reportable incidents (2009 42) which again,
relative to total employee hours worked, gave a RIDDOR reportable rate

of 152 (2009 104)

In the US, an OSHA recordable incident is one where medical attention
more extensive than simple first ard 1s required whereas in the UK a
RIDDOR reportable incident (as defined by the UK Health and Safety
Executive) 1s an incident which results i the injured employee not
returning to work for more than three days

In order to compare accident rates between the US and UK, A-Plant also
applied the US OSHA definition to 1ts acadent population which gave

a figure of 114 [2008/9 96) OSHA recordable acadents in the UK On

a like-for-like basis In the year ended April 2010, Sunbelt therefore had
39 (2008/9 44) OSHA recordable incidents for every 1,000 employees
whilst A-Plant’s equivalent incident rate was 58 (2008/9 42)

The increase in 2009/10 in UK incidents compared to the previous year
does not reflect any lessening of fecus on health and safety matters
and additronally none of the recorded inaidents resulted in any major
long-term inury A-Plant therefore antiopates its accident rate in the
coming year returning towards previous levels

Regular employee education and awareness training 1s, In Qur view, the
most effective way of improving and sustaining safety standards across
our businesses and both businesses continue to invest in providing these
programmes We also seek continually to educate our er\nployees and
our customers about new and improved methods of ensuring employees
operate in a safe environment

Safeguarding the environment

The Group 1s commutted to taking reasonable actions to mirumise the nisk
of adverse impact on the environment from our business We achieve this
by a policy of investing in

« the regular renewal of our rental fleets to ensure that the equipment we
provide to our customers mostly incorporates the latest environmental
management thinking avalable from our chosen manufacturers At
30 April 2010 the average age of our fleet was approximately 44 months,

= our network of stores to ensure that they are adequately equipped to

operate 1n a safe and secure way, protective of the environment Key
rmatters which are addressed in this programme are wash-down bays
to collect and safely dispose of matenals released when we inspect and
clean equipment returned from rent, enclosed paint booths and spray
shops to ensure that repainting of equipment can be conducted safely
and securely, bunded fuel tanks and designated spill areas to ensure
secure fuelling of our fleet and, where relevant, vehicles We also seek

1o ensure proper arrangements are made, through the use of reputable

vendors, for the collection and disposat of waste fuels and oils, tyres and

other old or broken parts released as we service and maintain our rental
fleets Already A-Plant works mostly with a single national supplier to
manage this centrally and Sunbelt is looking to reduce the number of
vendors i1t uses in the coming year to enable additional assurance to be
gained In this area, and

a modern and efficient delivery truck fleet to ensure that our vehucles

are purchased with the latest available emissions managerment and fuel

efficency avallable from our chosen suppliers




We also support the imtiatives of the Carbon Disclosure Project in the
management of harmful carbon dioxide emissions We partrcipate 10 its
annual survey and are commutted in future to reporting on our carbon
dioxide consumption in our Annual Report Across the Group our estimated
total CQ; ermissions n the year to 30 Apnil 2010 were 181,000 tonnes
(2009 197,000 tonnes) This comprised 155,000 tonnes at Sunbelt (2009
169,000 tonnes) and 26,000 tonnes for A-Plant (2009 27,000 tonnes)

Whilst these emusston levels are low relative to our revenues and
employee numbers, we recognise that most of our emissions are
generated by our delivery truck fleet in transporting our equipment to
customers’ job sites Our customers expect and pay for this delivery but
we are working on a number of inttiatives to enable our customers to help
us reduce our emission levels and the delivery charges we make to them
For example, on big, long-term construction sites, we are increasingly
placing pools of our equiprnent at the job site enabling equipment to

be sourced on site and thereby reducing the site's overall transportation
needs We are also investing in building a secure container in which to
store smaller tools at the job site with an electronic access gate which
uses RFID tagging to enable autcmated invoicing to the customer as

the tools are used

Employees

Qur employees are our greatest asset and we place enormous value on
therr welfare, as well as the superior level of service they provide for our
custorners At 30 April 2010, we had 7,200 employees across the Group
Qur employees benefit from extensive on-the-job traiming schemes and
are incentivised to deliver supenor performance and customer service
We continue to take action consistently through the year to maintain
and develop arrangements aimed at involving employees in the Group's
affairs For example, regular meetings are held at profit centres to discuss
performance and enable employees to input into ways of improving
performance and service levels

We pnde ourselves on many of our staff remarning with us throughout
their careers, something which 1s increasingly uncommon Several of
our most senior staff started out at entry level within our stores and
therr continuity of employment 15 testament to our focus on employee
development We are committed to ensuring equal opportunities for
all our staff, as well as to priontising local employment, such that our
bustnesses predominantly recrunt from the areas smmediately around our
facilities We make every reasonable effort to give disabled applicants and
existing emptoyees becoming disabled, opportunities for work, traimng
and career development in keeping with their aptitudes and abilities
More mformatton on our employees can be found on pages 17 and 24

EN————

Geoff Drabble
Chief executive
16 June 2010
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independent auditfors’ report to the
members of Ashtead Group plc

We have audited the financial statements of Ashtead Group plc for

the year ended 30 April 2010 which comprise the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income,

the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets, the Censolidated and
Company Cash Flow Statements, the Consohdated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the related notes ¥ to 30 The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and, as regards the parent Compary fimancial statements,
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Thus report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a bedy, In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compamies Act 2006 Qur
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent pernutted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work,

for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors

and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financal
staterments and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view
Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and
Iretand) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group's and the Company's crcumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors,
and the overall presentation of the financaial statements

Opinion on financial statements
in our opinion

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the parent Company’s affairs as at 30 Apnl 2010 and
of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,

the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with (FRSs as adopted by the European Union,

the Company financial statements have been properly prepared mn
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and
the financial statements have been prepared n accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued
by the IASB

As explained in note 1 to the financial statements, the Group in addition
to complying with its legal abligatton to apply IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, has also applied [FRSs as 1ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (JASB)

in cur opinion the financial statements comply with IFRSs as tssued by
the |ASB

Opinion on other matters prescribed by
the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

+ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

» the infarmation given i the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,
IR Qur opirion

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been receved from branches
not visited by us, or

the Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« the directors’ statement contained within the Corporate Governance
Report in relaticn to going concern, and

» the part of the Corporate Governance Report relating to the Company's
compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008 Combined Code
specified for our review

o Waller
lan Waller (Senior Statutory Auditor}
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
16 June 2070
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consolidated

income statement

For the year ended 30 April 2010

2010 2000
Before Before
excef L Excep L exceptional Exceptional
smortisationand  amortisation and itemns and stems and
ts Total amortisation amortisation Total
Notes £m Em £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue
Rental revenue 7696 - 7696 9740 - 9740
Sale of new equipment, merchandise and consumables 406 - 406 556 - 556
Sale of used rental equipment 266 16 282 439 505 944
8368 16 8384 10735 505 11240
Operating costs
Staff costs 3 (266 3) - {266 3) {(3134) 49 (3179)
Used rental equipment sold 3 (24 6) (16) (26 2) (373) (503) (876)
Other operating costs 3 (2908 - 290 8] (3667 (350 (4017)
581 {G) 583 3 7174 {898 (8072)
EBITDA* 2551 - 2551 3561 (393) 3168
Depreciation 3 {186 6) - (186 6) (2011} (439 (2450)
Amortisation 3 - {2 5) {2 5) — {34) (34)
Operating profit 23 685 {25) 660 1550 (86 6) 684
Net financing costs 5 (63 5) 23 {612) (676) — (676)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 50 ©2) 48 874 (866) 08
Taxation
— current 6 (2 2) - (22) 27) 26 01
— deferred 618 (17) 02 15 {26 9} 282 13
#9) 02 3 (296} 308 12
Profit from continuing operations 11 - 11 578 (558} 20
Profit from discontinued operations - 10 10 20 590 610
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 11 10 21 598 32 630
Continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 8 02p - 02p 115p {111p O4p
Diuted earnings per share 8 02p - 02p 114p (11 0p Q4p
Total continuing and discontinued operations
Basic earnings per share 8 02p 02p 04p 11 9p 0 6p 12 5p
Diluted earrings per share a8 02p 02p 04p 118p 07p 12 5p
* EBITDA 15 presented here as an additional performance measure as it 1s commonly used by investors and lenders
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 April 2010
2010 2009
Em £m
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the financial year 21 630
Foreign currency translation differences (90) 598
Actuarial {oss on defined benefit pension scheme (92) {74)
Tax on foreign currency translation differences - 37)
Tax on defined benefit pension scheme 26 20
Tax on share-based payments 01 04
Total comprehensive income for the year (13 4) 1141




consolidated
balance sheet

At 30 April 2010
2070 2009
Notes £m £m
Current assets
Inventones g 9.9 104
Trade and other recervables 0 134.7 148 3
Current tax asset 11 15
Cash and cash equivalents 1 54.8 17
200.5 1619
Assets held for sale - 16
200.5 1635
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
~—rental equipment 12 9697 11405
—other assets 12 1319 1535
1,101.6 12940
Intangible assets — brand names and other acquired intangibles 13 33 59
Goodwill 13 3736 3854
Deferred tax asset B 78 123
QOther financial assets - dervatives 23 57 -
Defined benefit pension fund surplus 2 - 03
14920 1,6979
Total assets 1,692 5 18614
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables " 1306 1067
Current tax liability 21 -
Debt due within one year 15 31 69
Provisions 7 120 174
147.8 1310
Non-current Liabtlities
Debt due after more than one year 15 8807 10307
Provisions 17 254 368
Deferred tax Liabilities 18 126.6 1369
Defined beneht pension fund deficit 22 77 =
1,044 .4 1,204 4
Total habilities 1,192.2 1,3354
Equity
Share caprtal 15 553 553
Share prermum account 36 36
Capital redemption reserve 09 09
Non-distributable reserve 907 907
Own shares held by the Company (331) (331)
Qwn shares held through the ESOT {6.3) {63)
Cumutlative foreign exchange translation differences 201 291
Retained reserves 3691 3858
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 500.3 5260
Total liabilities and equity 1692 5 18614

These finanoial statements were approved by the Board on 16 june 2010

Geoff Drabble fan Robson
Chief executive Finance director
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consolidated statement of

changes in equity

For the year ended 30 April 2010

Cumnulatve
Own foreign
Share Capital Non- shares exchange
Share premium redemption distnbutable Treasury held by translation Retained
capital aceount reserve reserve stock ESOT differences reserves Totat
£ £m £m £m £m im £m £m £m
At 1 May 2008 562 36 - 907 (233) (70) {28 2} 3483 4403
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 561 580 1141
Shares 1ssued - - - - 05 - - (03) 02
Dwvidends paid - - - - - - - (129 (129
Share-based payments - - - - - - - (08 {08}
Vesting of share awards - - - _ _ 11 _ (11} _
Own shares purchased - - - — (157) ©4) _ _ (161)
Cancellation of shares held by the Company  (09) - 09 - 54 - - (54) -
Realisation of foreign exchange
translation differences - - = = - - 12 - 12
At 30 Apri{ 2009 553 36 09 907 (331) 63) 291 3858 5260
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - (90) (44 (134)
Dividends paid - - - - - - - {128 (128
Share-based payments - - - - - - - 05 05
At 30 April 2010 55.3 36 09 207 (331} {6 3} 201 3691 5003
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consolidated
cash flow statement

For the year ended 30 April 2010

2010 2009

Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items and changes in rental fleet 2442} 2656 3736
Exceptional costs pard 82) (94
Payments for rental property, plant and equipment (36.1) (208 5)
Proceeds from disposal of rental property, plant and equipment before exceptional disposals 252 392
Excepticnal proceeds from disposal of rental property, plant and equipment 16 461
Cash generated from operations 248.1 24910
Financing costs paid (net) (547) (647)
Tax recerved (net) 0.3 08
Net cash from operating activities 193.7 1771
Cash flows from investing activitres
Acquisttion of businesses 24(d) {0.2) {03)
Disposal of business (costs)/proceeds (0.5) 893
Payments for non-rental property, plant and equipment (6.7) (271
Proceeds from disposal of non-rental property, plant and equipment 40 66
Net cash (used in}/from investing activities (3.9) 685
Cash flows from financing activities
Drawdown of {oans 290.7 1478
Redemption of loans (410 8) (353 4)
Capital element of finance lease payments (43) (116}
Purchase of own shares by the Company - (s7)
Purchase of own shares by the ESOT - (04)
Dividends paid (12 8) {12 9)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares - 02
Net cash used in financing activities (1372) {246 0)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 531 (04}
Opening cash and cash equivalents 17 18
Effect of exchange rate differences - 03
Closing cash and cash equivalents 548 1.7
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notes to the consolidated

financial statements |

1 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below These policies have been applied
consistently to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS") and with those parts
of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS
Accordingly, the Group complies with all IFRS, including those adopted for
use 1n the European Union The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, modified for certain items carried at
fair value, as stated in the accounting policies A summary of the more
important accounting pelicies 1s set out below

During the year, the Group adopted the following interpretations and
amendments to standards

* IAS 1 (revised) Presentation of financial instruments has been adopted

and has resulted in the 'Consolidated statement of changes in equity’

being presented as a pnimary statement (previously disclosed as a note

titled "Reconciliation of changes in equity’) In addition, the Group has

continued to present a separate 'Income statement’ and 'Statement

of comprehensive income’ (previously titled ‘Statement of recognised

income and expense’) The adoption of 1AS 1 (revised) has had no impact

on the consolidated results or financial position of the Group

The following new standards, amendments to standards or interpretations

are effective for the Group’s accounting period beginming on 1 May 2009

and, where relevant, have been adopted They have not had a material

impact on the consalidated results or financial position of the Group

— IFRS 1 (revised) First ime adoption of IFRS,

— IFRS 3 (revised) Business combinations,

— Amendments to IFRS 2 Group cash-settled share-based payment
transactions,

— Amendment to IFRS 7 improving disclosures about financial
instruments,

— Amendments to |AS 27 Consolidated and separate financiai
statements,

— Armendment to IAS 32 Financial instruments presentation
classification of rights 1ssues,

— Amendment to IAS 39 Reclassification of financial assets effective
date and transition,

~ Amendment to AS 39 Financial instrurments recogmition and
measurement eligible hedged items,

— Amendment to IFRIC 9 and IAS 39 Embedded derivatives,

— IFRIC 15 Agreements for the construction of real estate,

— {FRIC 16 Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation,

— IFRIC 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to owners,

IFRIC 18 Transfers of assets from customers,

— Improvements to IFRS (April 2008)

The preparation of financial statements 1n conformity with generatly
accepted accounting prinaples requires management to use estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Labibties at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amcunt of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period A more detailed discussion

of the principal accounting policies and management estimates and
assumptions is included in the Business and Financial Review on page
31 and forms part of these financial statements Actual results could
differ from these estimates

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and all its subsidraries for the year to 30 April each year The
results of businesses acquired or sold during the year are incorporated for
the periods frormn or to the date on which control passed and acquisitions

are accounted for under the acquisition method Controt is achieved when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to ebtain the benefits from its activities

Foreign currency translation

Assets and liabilittes in foreign currencies are translated into pounds
sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Income
staternents and cash flows of overseas subsidiary undertakings are
translated into pounds sterling at average rates of exchange for the year
The exchange rates used In respect of the US dollar are

2010 2009
Average for year 160 168
Year end 153 148

Exchange differences arising from the retranslation of the opening net
investment of overseas subsidiaries and the difference between the
inclusion of therr profits at average rates of exchange in the Group income
statement and the closing rate used for the balance sheet are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity Other exchange differences
are dealt withn the iIncome statement

Revenue

Revenue represents the total amount recevable for the prowvision of goods

and services including the sale of used rental plant and equipment to

customers net of returns and value added tax Rental revenue, including ‘
loss damage waiver and environmental fees, 1s recognised on a straight- |
line basis over the period of the rental contract Because the terms and ‘
conditions of arental contract can extend across financial reporting period

ends, the Group records unbilled rental revenue and deferred revenue at

the beginning and end of each reporting period so that rental revenue is

appropriately stated (n the financial statements |

Revenue from rental equipment delivery and collection is recognised
when delivery or callection has occurred and is reported as rental revenue ‘

Revenue from the sale of rental equipment, new equipment, parts and

supplies, retail merchandise and fuel 1s recognised at the time of delivery ‘
to, or collection by, the custormer and when all obligations under the sales

contract have been fulfilled

Revenue from sales of rental equipment in connection with trade-in
arrangements with certain manufacturers from whom the Group purchases |
new equipment 1s accounted for at the lower of transaction value or fair ‘
value based onindependent appraisals If the trade-in price of a unit \
of equipment exceeds the fair market value of that unit, the excess is

accounted for as a reduction of the cost of the related purchase of new

rental equipment ‘

Current/non-current distinction |
Current assets include assets held pnmanly for trading purposes, cash and
cash equivalents and assets expected to be realised in, or intended for sale
or consumption in, the course of the Group's operating cycle and those
assets receivable within one year from the reporting date All other assets
are classified as non-current assets

Current habilities include liabilities held primanly for trading purposes,
liabilitves expected to be settled in the course of the Group's operating
cycle and those labibities due within one year from the reporting date
All other habilities are classified as non-current habilities

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost (including transportation
costs from the manufacturer to the initial rental location) less accumulated
depreciation and any provisions for impairment In respect of aerial work




platforms, cost includes rebuild costs when the rebuild extends the asset’s
useful economic life and 1t 1s probable that incremental economic benefits
will accrue to the Group Rebuild costs include the cost of transporting
the equipment to and from the rebuild supplier Additionally, depreciation
1s not charged while the asset 1s not in use during the rebuild period

Leased assets

Finance leases are those leases which transfer substantiatly all the nsks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee Assets held under finance leases
are capitalised within property, plant and equipment at the fair value of
the leased assets at inception of the lease and depreciated 1n accordance
with the Group’s depreciation palicy Qutstanding finance lease obligations
are included within debt The finance element of the agreements is
charged to the income statement on a systematic basis over the term

of the lease

All other [eases are operating leases, the rentals on which are charged
to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Depreciation

Leasehold properttes are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the life
of each lease Other fixed assets, including those held under finance {eases,
are depreciated on a straight-line basts applied to the opening cost to
write down each asset to its restdual valte over its useful economic Life
The rates in use are as follows

Per annum
Freehold property 2%
Motor vehicles 16% to 25%
Rental equipment 5% to 33%
Office and workshop equipment 20%

Residual values are estimated at 10% of cost n respect of most types
of rental equipment, although the range of residual values used varies
between zero and 30%

Repairs and maintenance
Costs incurred in the repair and maimntenance of rental and other
equipment are charged to the income statement as incurred

Intangible assets

Business combinations and goodwill

Acquisitions are accounted for using the purchase method Goodwili
represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the
fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired, including any intangible
assets other than goodwill Adjustments to the farr values of assets
acquired made within 12 months of acquisition date are accounted for
from the date of acquisition

Goodwill 1s stated at cost less any accurmnutated imparrment losses and
I1s allocated to the Group's two reporting units Sunbelt and A-Plant

The profit or loss on the disposal of a previously acquired bustness
includes the attributable amount of any purchased goodwill relating
to that business

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired as part of a bustness combination are
capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition Internally generated
intangible assets are not caprtalised Amortisatton is chargedon a
straight-line basis over the expected useful lfe of each asset. Contract
related intangible assets are amortised over the life of the contract
Amorusation rates for other intangible assets are as follows

Per annum
Brand names 83%
Customer lists 10% to 20%

Impairment of assets

Goodwill ts not amartised but 15 tested annually for imparrment as at

30 Apnl each year Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in arcumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Anmpairment
loss is recogrnised in the income staternent for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount For the purposes
of assessing impanment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately rdentifiable and independent cash flows for the asset
being tested for impairment Inthe case of goodwill, imparrment is
assessed at the leve! of the Group's two reporting units

The recoverable amount ss the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use In assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows
are discounted to ther present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
nsks specific to the asset

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impawrment loss 1s reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to deterrmine the
recoverable amount An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised Impairment losses in respect
of goodwill are not reversed

Taxation

The tax charge for the period comprises both current and deferred tax
Taxation is recognised in the income staterment except to the extent that
it relates to itemns recogrused directly in equity, in which case the related
tax 1s also recognised in equity

Current tax I1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet biability method on

any temporary differences between the carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes Deferred tax liabiltties
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recogrused to the extent that it i1s probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised Such assets and labilities are not recogmsed if the
temporary differences anse from the imstial recognition of goodwill

Deferred tax hiabilities are not recognised for temporary differences

ansing on investment in subsidiaries where the Group 1s able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the
ternporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future Deferred
tax 15 calculated at the tax ratesthat are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset 1s realised Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis

Inventories
Inventones, which comprise new equipment, fuel, merchandise and spare
parts, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Employee benefits

Defined contribution penston plans

Obligations under the Group's defined contnbution plans are recognised
as an expense In the income staternent as incurred
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financial statements e

1 Accounting policies continued

Defined benefit pension plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for thewr service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit 1s discounted to determine its present value and the fair value of
plan assets 1s deducted The discount rate used is the yield at the balance
sheet date on AA rated corporate bonds The calculation 1s performed by
a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method

Actuanal gains and losses are recogrised tn full in the period (n which
they arise through the statement of recognised iIncome and expense
The increase in the present value of plan babilities arising from employee
service during the period is charged to operating profit The expected
return on plan assets and the expected increase during the period in
the present value of plan liabilities due to unwind of the discount are
included In investment income and interest expense, respectively

The defined penston surplus or deficit represents the fair value of the
scheme assets less the present value of the defined benefit obligation
A surplus 1s recognised in the balance sheet to the extent that the Group
has an unconditional right to the surplus, either through a refund or
reduction in future contributions A deficit 1s recognised in fuil

Share-based compensation

The fair value of awards made under share-based compensation plans is
measured at grant date and spread over the vesting period through the
income statement with a correspending increase 1in equity The fair value
of share options and awards 1s measured using an appropriate valuation
model taking into account the terms and condittons of the individual
scheme The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual awards vesting except where any change in the awards vesting
relates only to market-based criteria not being achieved

Insurance

Insurance costs include insurance premiums which are written off to the
income statement over the period to which they relate and an estimate
of the discounted liability for uninsured retained risks on unpaid claims
incurred up to the balance sheet date The estimate includes events
incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date This estimate 1s
discounted and included in provisions In the balance sheet

Investment income and interest expense

Investment income comprises interest recevable on funds invested, fair
value gains on dervative financial instruments and the expected return
on plan assets i respect of defined benefit pension plans

Interest expense comprises interest payable on borrowings, amartisation
of deferred finance costs, fair value losses on derivative financial
instruments and the expected increase in plan Labilities in respect of
defined benefit pension schermes

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised in the Group's
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisicns of the instrument

Financial assets

Trade recervables

Trade receivables do not carry mmterest and are stated at face value as
reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnises cash balances and call deposits with
maturity of less than, or equal to, three months

Financiat liabilties and equity

Equity instruments

An equity Instiument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs

Trade payables
Trade payables are not snterest bearing and are stated at face value

Borrowings

interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct transaction costs Finance charges, including
amortisation of direct transaction costs, are charged to the mcome
statement using the effective interest rate method

Tranches of borrawings and overdrafts which mature on a regular basis
are classified as current or non-current babilities based on the matunity
of the facility so long as the committed facility exceeds the drawn debt

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses a imited number of derivative financial instruments to
hedge 1ts exposure 1o fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates
These are prinapally swap agreements used to manage the balance
between fixed and floating rate finance on long-term debt and forward
contracts far known future foreign currency cash flows The Group does
not hold or issue derivative instruments for speculative purposes

All dervatives are held at fair value in the balance sheet within trade

and other recewables or trade and other payables Changes n the farr
value of dervatve financial instruments that are designated and effective
as hedges of future cash flows are recognised directly In equity The gain
or loss relating to any ineffective portion 1s recognised Immediately

In the mcome statement Amounts deferred 1n equity are recognised

in the income statement sn the same period in which the hedged

irem affects profit or loss Changes in the fair value of any denvative
instruments that are not hedge accounted are recognised immediately

In the iIncome statement

Secured notes

The Group's secured notes contain early prepayment options, which
constitute embedded derivatives in accordance with I1AS 39, Financial
Instruments Recognition and Measurement At the date of issue the
lability component of the notes is estimated using prevailing market
mterest rates for smilar debt with no prepayment option and s recorded
within borrowings, net of direct transaction costs The difference between
the proceeds of the note issue and the fair value assigned to the Lability
component, representing the embedded option to prepay the notes

15 included within ‘Other financial assets — derivatives’ The interest
expense on the labitity component 1s calculated by applying the effective
interest rate method The embedded option to prepay s fair valued

using an appropriate valuation modet and fair value remeasurement
gains and losses are included in investrment iIncome and interest

expense respectively

Exceptional items

Exceptional tems are those items that are material and non-recurring

in nature that the Group belteves should be disclosed separately to assist
in the understanding of the financial performance of the Group

Earnings per share

Earnings per share 1s calculated based on the profit for the financial year
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the
year For this purpose the number of ordinary shares in issue excludes
shares held in treasury or by the ESOT in respect of which dividends have
been waived Diluted earnings per share 15 calculated using the profit for
the financial year and the weighted average diluted number of shares




(ignoning any potential 1ssue of ordinary shares which would be anti-
dilutive) during the year

Underlying earnings per share comprises basic earnings per share adjusted
to exclude earmings relating to exceptional iterms, amortisation of acquired
intangibles and fair value remeasurements of embedded derivatives 1n
long-term debt Cash tax earmings per share comprises underlymg
earnings per share adjusted to exclude deferred taxation

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it 1s probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date and are discounted to present value where the effect
15 matenal

Employee Share Ownership Trust
Shares in the Company acquired by the Employee Share Gwnership Trust
in the open market for use in connection with employee share plans are

2 Segmental analysis
Business segments

presented as a deduction from shareholders” funds When the shares vest
to satisfy share-based payments, a transfer 1s made from own shares held
through the ESOT to retaned earnings

Treasury shares

The cast of treasury shares is deducted from shareholders’ funds The
proceeds from the reissue of treasury shares are added to shareholders’
funds with any gains in excess of the average cost of the shares being
recognised in the share premium account

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at

the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell Such assets
are classtfied as held for sale if ther carrying amount wilt be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use Such assets
are not depreciated Assets are regarded as held for sale only when the
sale 1s highly probable and the asset 1s available for sale in 1ts present
condition Management must be committed to the sale which must be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification

The Group operates ane class of business rental of equipment Operationally, the Group is split into two business units, Sunbelt and A-Plant which
separately report to, and are managed by, the chief executive and align with the geographies in which they operate, being the US and UK, respectively
The Group also owned Ashtead Technology, which was sold in the prior year and therefore classified as a disposal group These business units are the
basis on which the Group reports its segment information The Group manages debt and taxation centrally, rather than by business unit Accardingly,
segmental results are stated before interest and taxation which are reported as central Group items This 1s consistent with the way the chief executive

reviews the business

Corporate Continuing  Discontinued

Sunbelt A-Plant fems operations operations Group
Year ended 30 April 2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 6745 1623 - 8368 - 8368
Operating costs {455 5) (120 3) (59) (581.7) - (5817)
EBITDA 2190 420 59) 255.1 - 2551 |
Depreciation {146 3) {40 2) (01} (186 6) - (186 6)
Segment result before exceptional itermns and amortisation 727 18 (60) 68.5 - 685
Exceptional items - - - - 10 10
Amortisation (19) (06) - (2 5) — {2 5)
Segment result 708 12 {60) 66.0 10 670
Net financing costs (61.2) - (612)
Profit before taxation 4.8 10 58
Taxation (3.7) - (3.7)
Profit attributable tc equity sharehclders 11 10 21
S_Egment assets 13320 2909 02 16231 - 1,623.1
Cash 548 - 54.8
Taxation assets 8.9 - 89
Other financial assets — denvatives 57 - 5.7
Total assets 1,692.5 - 1,692.5
Segment liabilities 1196 445 17 165.8 - 165.8
Corporate borrowings and accrued interest 8977 - 897.7
Taxatwon Lizbilities 128 7 - 128.7
Total babilities 1192 2 - 1192 2
Other non-cash expendrture
- share-based payments 02 01 02 05 - 0.5
Capital expenditure 483 153 - 636 - 63.6
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2 Segmental analysis continued

Corporate Contimung  Discontinued

Sunbelt A Plant temns operations operations Growp
Year ended 30 April 2009 fm £m £m £fm £m fm
Revenue 8655 2080 - 10735 51 10786
Qperating costs (566 8) {145 2) (54 {7174) (23) {7197}
EBITDA 2987 628 (54) 3561 28 3589
Depreciation (154 3) (46 7) ©1 (2011) - (2c19)
Segment resutt before exceptional iterns and amortisation 144 4 161 {55) 1550 28 1578
Exceptional iterns {519) (313) - (832 661 (179)
Arortisation {29 {05) - (34) - (34)
Segment result 896 {15 7} (55) 684 689 1373
Net financing costs {676} - (676)
Profit before raxation 08 689 697
Taxation 12 {79} {67)
Profit attributable ta equity shareholders 20 610 630
Segment assets 15147 3310 02 18459 - 1,8459
Cash 17 - 17
Taxation assets 138 - 138
Total assets 1,8614 — 18614
_ngment habifities 1133 345 22 1500 - 1500
Corporate borrowings and accrued interest 10485 - 1,0485
Deferred taxation habilties 1369 - 1369
Total liabilities 1,335 4 — 13354
Other non-cash expenditure
— share-based payments {04} (01) (03) (08) — {08)
Capital expenditure 166 1 725 — 2386 — 2386

There are no sales between the business segments Segment assets mnclude property, ptant and equipment, goodwill, acquired intangibles, inventory
and recevables Segment ltabilities comprise operating habilities and exclude taxation balances, corporate borrowings and accrued interest Capital
expenditure represents additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and includes additions through the acquisition of businesses

Segmental analysis by geography
The Group’s operations are located in North Amerrca and the United Kingdom The following table provides an analysis of the Group's revenue, segment
assets and capital expenditure, including acquisitions, by country of domicile Segment assets include property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Revenue Segment assets Capital expend
2010 2009 2010 2009 2070 2009
£m im £m £m Em £m
North America 6745 8677 12221 13940 483 1661
United Kingdom 162.3 2099 256.4 2921 153 725
Rest of World - 10 - -

836 8 10786 1478 5 1,6861 636 2386




3 Operating costs and other income

2010 2009
Before Before
exceptional Excep exceptional Exceptional
tems and Items and dterns and iterns and
amortisation amortisation Total amertisztion amortsabon Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Staff costs
Salanes 2447 - 2447 2846 45 2891
Social secunty costs 202 - 202 230 230
Other pension costs 1.4 - 14 58 - 58
266 3 - 266 3 3134 45 3179
Used rental equipment sold 24.6 16 262 373 503 876
Cther operating costs
Vehicle costs 662 - 662 840 05 845
Spares, consumables and external repairs 489 - 489 619 19 638
Facility costs 49 - 49 473 253 726
Other external charges 1308 - 1308 1735 73 180 8
29508 - 2908 3667 350 4017
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of owned assets 1849 - 1849 1975 406 2381
Depregiation of leased assets 17 - 17 36 33 69
Amortisation of acquired intangibles - 25 25 — 34 34
1866 25 1891 2011 473 248 4
768 3 41 7724 9185 1371 10556
Proceeds from the disposal of non-rental property, plant and equipment amounted to £4 Om (2009 £5 9m) from continuing operations
The costs shown in the above table include
010 2009
Before Before
exceptional Exceptional exceptional Excepnonal
items items Totat ems iterms Total
£m £m Em £m £m £m
Operating lease rentals payable
Plant and equipment 17 - 17 33 - i3
Property 339 - 339 341 240 581
Cost of nventones recogrised as expense 376 - 376 558 60 618
Bad debt expense 97 - 87 170 - 170
Net foreign exchange losses 01 - 01 - - -
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3 Operating costs and other income continued
Remuneration payable to the Company’s auditors, Deloitte LLP, in the year is given below-

2010 2009
£000 £000
Audit services
Fees payable to Deloitte UK
— Group audit 29 343
—~ UK statutory audits of subsidiarres 13 14
Fees payable to other Deloitte firms
— averseas subsidiary audits 303 292
607 649
Other services
Fees payable to Deloitte UK
— hatf year review 47 73
— other assurance services 10 20
— other non-audit services - 135
Fees payable to other Deloitte firms
— half year review 14 48
—tax services 44 -
722 925
4 Exceptional items, amortisation and fair value remeasurements
2010 2009
£m Em
US cost reduction programme - {52 2}
UK cost reduction programme - (317)
Profit on sale of property from closed sites - 07
Write-off of deferred financing costs {32) -
Fair value remeasurements of embedded derivatives 55 _
Sale of Ashtead Technology 10 661
Total exceptional itemns before taxation 33 {17)
Taxation on exceptional items {07) 224
Total exceptional items 26 53
Amortisation of acquired intangibles {net of tax credit of £0 9m) {16} 21
10 32

The write-off of deferred financing costs consists of the unamortised balance of costs related to the 2006 ABL facibity refinanced i November 2009
Farr value remeasurements relate to the changes in the fair value of the embedded prepayment options in our second priority senier secured notes
The income from the sale of Ashtead Technology relates to the release of a provision, established at the time of the disposal, agamst potential

warranty claims
Exceptional itemns, amortisation and fair value remeasurements are presented in the Income statement as follows

2010 2009

Em £m

Sale of used rental equipment 16 505
Staff costs - 45
Used rental equipment sold (1.6) (503)
Other operating costs - (350)
Depreciation - (439)
Amortisation (2 5) (34)
Charged in arriving at operating profit {25) (866)
Net financing income 23 -
Charged in arrving at profit before tax {02) (86 6)
Taxation 0.2 308
- (558)

Profit after taxation from discontinued operations 10 590

10 32




5 Net financing costs
2010 2009
£m £fm
Investment income
Expected returmn on assets of defined benefit penston plan {(32) {41}
Interest expense
Bank interest payable 134 216
Interest payable on second priority senior secured notes 44 4 42 4
Interest payable on finance leases o3 o7
Non-cash unwind of discount on defined pension plan liabilinies 30 31
Non-cash unwind of discount on insurance provisions 15 11
Amortisation of deferred costs of debt raising 41 28
Total interest expense 667 717
Net financing costs before exceptional iterms 63.5 676
Exceptional tems 32 -
Fair value remeasurements (5.5) -
Net finanang costs 612 676
6 Taxation
2010 2009
Em fm
Analysis of charge/(credit} in period
Current tax
— current tax on income for the year 3.9 01
— adjustments to prior year (.7 —
2.2 01
Deferred tax
- ongination and reversal of temporary differences 23 (13}
— adjustments to prior year 38 -
15 (13)
Tatal taxation 37 {12)
Comprising.
— UK tax 102 45
- overseas taxation {6 5) 57
37 (19

The tax charge on continuing activities comprises a charge of £3 9m (2009 £29 6m) relating to tax an the profit before exceptional items, amortsation
and farr value remeasurements, together with a net credit of £0 2m (2009 £30 8m} cormnprising a tax credit of £0 9m (2009 £1 3m} on the amortisation

expense and a tax charge of £0 7m on exceptional items and fair value remeasurements

The tax charge for the penod is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 28% for the year The differences are explained below

2010 2009
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 4.8 08
Profit on ordinary actmties multiphed by the rate of corporation tax in the UK of 28% {2005 28%} 13 02
Effects of
Use of foreign tax rates on overseas incorme {0.8) 25)
QOther 11 1
Adjustments to pnor year 2.1 -
Total taxation charge/{credit) 3.7 (12
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7 Dividends
2010 2009
£Em im
Final dividend pad on 11 Septernber 2009 of 1675p (2009 1 675p) per 10p ordinary share 8.3 84
Interim dividend patd on 3 February 2010 of 0 9p (2009 09p) per 10p ordinary share 45 45
128 129

In addition, the directors are proposing a final dividend n respect of the financial year ended 30 Apnit 2010 of 2 Op per share which will absorb £10 Om
of shareholders’ funds based on the 497 7m shares ranking for dividend at 16 June 2010 Subject to approval by sharehalders, it will be paid on
10 September 2010 to shareholders who are on the register of members on 20 August 2010

8 Earnings per share

2010 2009
Welghted Per Waeighted Per
average no share average no share
Earnings of shares amount Eamings of shares amount
£m million pence £m millson pence
Continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 1 497.6 02 20 5045 04
Share options and share plan awards - 38 - _ 02 _
Diluted earrungs per share 11 5014 02 20 5047 04
Discontinued operations
Basic earnings per share 10 4976 02 610 5045 121
Share options and share plan awards - 3.8 - - 02 -
Diluted earnings per share 10 501.4 02 610 5047 121
Total group
Basic earmings per share 21 4976 04 630 5045 125
Share optrons and share plan awards - 38 - - 02 -
Dituted earnings per share 21 5014 04 630 5047 125
Underlying and cash tax earnings per share may be reconciled to the basic earnings per share as follows
2010 2009
peoce pence
Total group
Basic earnings per share 04 125
Exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangrbles (0.2) 41
Tax on exceptional rems and amortisation - {47)
Underlying earrings per share 02 119
Other deferred tax 04 54
Cash tax earnings per share 06 173
9 Inventories
2010 2009
£m £m
Raw materials, consumables and spares 57 42
Goods for resale 42 62

99 104




10 Trade and other receivables

2010 2009

£m fm

Trade receivables 129.8 1416
Less allowance for bad and doubtful recervables (15 6) (176}

n4z2 1240

Other recewvables 205 243

1347 1483

The fair values of trade and other receivables are not matenally different to the carrying vatues presented

a) Trade receivables credit risk

The Group's exposure to the credit risk inherent in its trade recewables and the assotiated risk management techniques that the Group deploys in

order to mitigate this risk are discussed in note 23 The credit penads offered to customers vary according to the credit risk profiles of, and the invoicing
conventions established in, the Group’s markets The contractual terms on invoices issued to customers vary between the US and the UK in that,
invoices issued by A-Plant are payable within 30~60 days whereas, invoices 1ssued by Sunbelt are payable on receipt Therefore, on this basis, a
significant proportion of the Group's trade receivables are contractually past due The allowance account for bad and doubtful receivables s calculated
based on prier experience reflecting the level of uncollected receivables over the last year within each business Accordingly, this cannot be attributed to
specific recervables so the aged analysis of trade recewvables, including those past due, 15 shown gross of the allowance for bad and doubtful recewvables

On this basis, the ageing analysis of trade recewvables, including those past due, 15 as follows

Trade recervables past due by
Less than 30-60 60 -390 More than
Current 30days days days 90 days Total
£m fm im £m £m £m
Carrying value at 30 Apnl 2010 178 630 267 78 145 1298
Carrying value at 30 Apnl 2009 278 557 284 81 216 1416

In practice, Sunbelt operates on 30 day terms and cansiders receivables past due if they are unpaid after 30 days On this basis, the Group’s ageing of
trade receivables, including those past due, 1s as follows

Trade recervables past due by
{less than 30-60 60 -90 More than
Current 30days days days 90 days Total
£m fm £m £m fm £m
Carrying value at 30 Apnl 2010 694 351 93 43 17 1298
Carrying value at 30 Apnl 2009 801 280 108 50 177 1416
b) Movement in the allowance account for bad and doubtful receivables
2010 2009
£m £Em
At 1 May 176 126
Amounts written off and recovered duning the year (11.3) {147
Increase in allowance recognised in iIncome statement 9.7 170
Currency mavements {0.4) 27
At 30 April 156 176
11 Cash and cash equivalents
2010 2009
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 54.8 17

Cash and cash eguivalents compnise principally cash hetd by the Group with a major UK financial institution The carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents approximates theuwr fair value
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Rental equpment Motor vehucies
Held under Office and Held under
Land and finance workshop finance
buildings Owned leases equipment Owned leases Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m
Cost or valuation
At 1 May 2008 773 15281 03 480 850 326 17713
Exchange difference 126 3931 01 11 228 84 4481
Acquisitions - 01 - - - - o1
Reclassifications - (14) ©1 14 220 (22 2) (03)
Additions 72 2075 - 22 197 17 2383
Disposals (99) (150 4) - M) (198) 39 (1947)
Transfer to assets held for sale (04) (1791) - {6 4) {128) - {1987)
At 30 April 2009 868 17979 03 452 1169 170 20641
Exchange difference (16} (461) - (11) (34 (04 {(526)
Acquisitions - 01 - - - - 01
Reclassifications 04 {198) {07) 71 168 {44) -
Additions 35 556 - 06 35 ce2 634
Disposals (4 5) {86 6) - (6 8) (71) (30) {(1080)
At 30 April 2070 846 1,7011 02 450 1267 94 1,9670
Depreciation
At 1 May 2008 241 5343 01 371 285 161 6412
Exchange difference 22 1597 - 93 99 41 1852
Reclassifications - (o8} - 08 113 (116} (03)
Charge for the period 102 2108 - 54 150 36 2450
Disposals 87) (106 8} - (106) (151} 29 (1447)
Transfer to assets held for sale (04) {139 6) - {6 4) {10 5} - (156 9)
At 30 April 2009 274 6576 01 356 401 93 7701
Exchange difference (03} (111) - (09) (08§ 02 (133)
Reclassifications 04 {16 2) - 66 122 {2 9} 01
Charge for the period 38 e27 - 39 145 17 1866
Disposals 24) (615) - (66 (54) (22 (781)
At 30 April 2010 289 7315 01 38 6 606 57 8654
Net book value
At 30 April 2010 §57 969 6 0.1 64 661 37 1,1016
At 30 April 2009 594 1140 3 02 96 768 77 12940

The amount of rebuild costs capitalised in the year was Enil (2009 £19m)




13 Intangible assets including goodwill

Other intangible assets

Brand Customer Contract
CGoodwill names lists related Total Total
£m £m Em fm £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 1 May 2008 2N9 o7 17 92z 216 3135
Recognised on acquisition - - - 0z 0z 02
Disposals - - - (14) (149) (14)
Exchange differences 935 30 - 28 58 993
At 30 April 2009 3654 137 17 108 262 4ne6
Recognised on acquisition - - - 01 01 01
Exchange differences (1 8) {04) - {03) {07) (12 5)
At 30 April 2010 3736 133 17 106 256 3992
Amortisation
At 1 May 2008 - S5 03 38 136 136
Charge for the peniod - n 03 30 34 34
Disposals - - - (14) (14) (14)
Exchange differences - 30 - 17 47 47
At 30 April 2009 - 126 06 71 203 203
Charge for the period - 01 02 22 25 25
Exchange differences - (04) - (01} {05) {05)
At 30 Apnl 2010 -~ 123 08 92 223 22.3
Net book value
At 30 Apnit 2010 3736 10 09 1.4 33 376.9
At 30 April 2009 3854 11 11 37 59 3913
Goodwill acquired in a bustness combination was allocated, at acquisition, to the reporting urits that benefited from that business combination, as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
Sunbelt 3593 3711
A-Plant 143 143
373e 3854

For the purposes of determining potential goodwiil impairment, recoverable amounts are determined from value in use calculations using cash flow
projections based on financial plans covering a three year penod which were adopted and approved by the Board in April 2010 The growth rate
assumptions used n the plans reflect management's expectations of market developments and take account of past performance The annual growth
rate used to determine the cash flows beyond the three year period 15 2% and does not exceed the average long-term growth rates for the relevant

markets The pre-tax rate used to discount the projected cash flows 15 9%

A sensitivity analysis has been undertaken by changing the key assurnptions used for both Sunbelt and A-Plant. Based on this sensitivity analysis, no
reasonably possible change in the assumptions resulted in the carrying value of the goodwill in Sunbelt or A-Plant being reduced to the recoverable amount.

14 Trade and other payables

2010 2009

Em £m

Trade payables 487 256
Other taxes and soaal secunty 126 140
Accruals and deferred income 693 671
130.6 1067

Trade and other payables include amounts refating to the purchase of fixed assets of £276m (2009 £9 4m) The fair values of trade and other payables

are not matenally different from the carrying values presented

Ashtead Group plc Annual Report & Aroounts 2010




notes to the consolidated
financial statements conue

15 Borrowings

2010 2009
£m Em
Current
First prionity senior secured bank debt _ 17
Finance lease obligations 31 52
31 69
Non-current
First priority sermor secured bank debt 3675 4594
Finance lease obligations 04 27
8 625% second prionity senior secured notes, due 2015 160 2 1651
9% second prionty senior secured notes, due 2016 3526 3635

B8O 7 1,0307

Senior secured bank debt and the sentor secured notes are secured by way of, respectively, first and second prionty fixed and floating charges over
substantially ail the Group’s property, plant and equipment, inventory and trade recevables

First priority senior secured credit facility

During the year, the $184bn first prionity asset based senior secured loan facility (‘ABL facility’) was amended and now consists of a $1,313m revalving
credit facility committed until Novernber 2013 and a further $529m available on the onginal terms untl August 2011 consisting of a $303m revolving
credit facility and a $226m term loan The ABL facility 15 secured by a first priority interest in substantially all of the Group's assets Pricing for the
revolver loan 1s based on the ratio of funded debt to EBITDA before exceptional items according to a grnid which varies, depending on leverage, from
LIBOR plus 300bp to LIBOR plus 375bp for the extended tranche and LIBOR plus 150bp to LIBOR plus 225bp for the non-extended tranche At 30 April
2010 the Group's borrowing rate was LIBOR plus 350bp on the extended facility and L!BOR plus 2Z00bp on the non-extended facility The term loan 15

priced at LIBOR plus 175bp

The ABL facibity carries minimal amortisation of $2 Sm per annum on the term loan which will be met out of drawings from the committed revolver
faciity The ABL facility includes a springing covenant package under which quarterly financial performance covenants are tested anly if available
liquidity 1s less than $150m Available iquidity at 30 April 2010 was £351m {$537m) reflecting drawings under the facility at that date together with
outstanding letters of credit of £19m ($29m) As the ABL facility I1s asset-based, the maximum amount available to be borrowed {which includes
drawings in the form of standby letters of credit) depends on asset values (recewvables, inventory, rental equipment and real estate) which are subject
to pertodic independent appraisal The maximum amount which could be drawn at 30 April 2010 was £704m ($1,078m)

8 625% second priority senior secured notes due 2015 having a nominal value of $250m

On 3 August 2005 the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary Ashtead Holdings PLC, 1ssued 5250m of 8 625% second prionty senior secured
notes due 1 August 2015 The notes are secured by second priority secunity mterests over substantially the same assets as the ABL facility and are
also guaranteed by Ashtead Group plc

9% second priority senior secured notes due 2016 having a nominal vatue of $550m

On 15 August 2006 the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary Ashtead Capital, Inc , 1ssued $55Cm of 9% second priority senior secured notes
due 15 August 2016 The notes are secured by second prionty interests over substantially the same assets as the ABL facility and are also guaranteed
by Ashtead Group plc Both note 1ssues rank pan passu on a second lien basis

Under the terms of both the 8 625% and 9% notes the Group is, subject to important exceptians, restricted in its ability to incur additional debt,
pay dividends, make investments, sell assets, enter into sale and leaseback transactions and merge or consolidate with another company

The effective rates of interest at the balance sheet dates were as follows

2010 2008

First priority seror secured bank debt —revalving advances in dollars {extended tranche) 381% 219%
— revolving advances in dollars {non-extended tranche) 231% 219%

—term loan advances in dollars 206% 225%

—revelving advances in pounds sterling - 27%

Secured notes —$250m nominal value 8625% 8625%
— $550m nominal value 90% 90%

7.0% 70%

Finance leases




16 Obligations under finance leases

Mramum Present value of
lease payments anuTUm lease payments
2010 2009 2010 2009
Em £m £m fm
Amounis payable under finance leases
Less than one year 32 55 31 52
Later than one year but not more than five 04 29 04 27
36 84 35 79
Future finance charges (01) {05)
35 79
The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s nghts over the leased assets disctosed in note 12
17 Provisions
Sedf- Vacant
nsurance property Total
£m im £m
At 1 May 2009 273 269 542
Exchange differences (10) (©6) (16)
Utilised {151) 80} (231)
Charged in the year 35 09 104
Amortisation of discount 15 — 15
At 30 April 2010 22.2 192 41.4
200 2009
£m £m
Included in current liabilities 120 174
Included in non-current liabilities 294 36.8
414 542

Self-insurance provisions relate to the discounted estimated liability in respect of claims excesses to be incurred under the Group's insurance
programmes for events occurring up to the year end and are expected to be utihsed over a period of approximately eight years The provision 15
established based on advice receved from independent actuaries of the estimated total cost of the self-insured retained risk based on historical
claims experience The amount charged in the year 1s stated net of a £4 4m adjustment to reduce the provision held at 1 May 2009

The majonty of the provision for vacant property costs Is expected to be utilised over a period of up to five years
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18 Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets
Other
temporary
Tax losses differences Total
Em £m £m
At 1 May 2009 - 123 123
Offset against deferred tax lability at 1 May 2009 425 446 871
Gross deferred tax assets at 1 May 2009 425 569 9954
Exchange differences (12) {15) (27)
Credit/(charge) to income statement 49 849 (35)
Credit to equity - 27 27
Less offset against deferred tax hability 46 2) 419 (881)
At 30 April 2010 - 78 78
Deferred tax liabilities
Other
Accelerated tax ternporary
depreciation differences Total
£m £m £m
Net deferred tax liability at 1 May 2009 1815 {446) 1369
Deferred tax assets offset at 1 May 2009 425 446 871
Gross deferred tax hability at 1 May 2009 2240 - 2240
Exchange differences (73) - (73)
Credit to income statement 29) - (20)
2147 - 2147
Less offset of deferred tax assets
- benefit of tax losses (46 2)
~ other temporary differences @9
126 6

At 30 April 2010

The Group has an unrecognised UK deferred tax asset of £16m (2009 £16m) in respect of losses in a non-trading UK company, as it 1s not considered

probable this deferred tax asset will be utidised

At the balance sheet date, no temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries have been recognised No Liability has been
recognised m respect of these differences because the Group 1s 1n a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and 1t 15

probable that such differences wall not reverse in the foreseeable future

19 Called up share capital

2010 2009 2010 2009
Number Number £m £m

Ordinary shares of 10p each
Authonsed 900,000,000 900,000,000 900 900
Issued and fully pad
At 1 May 553,325,554 561,572,726 553 562
Cancellation of shares - (8.247172) _ (09
At 30 April 553,325,554 553,325,554 553 553

There were no movements in shares authorised or allotted during the period At 30 April 2010, 50m shares were held by the Company, acquired at an

average cost of 67p and a further 5 7m shares were held by the Company’s Employee Share Ownership Trust




20 Share-based payments

The Employee Share Ownership Trust {(ESOT) facilitates the prowvision of shares under certain of the Group's share-based remuneration ptans It holds a
beneficial interest in 5,669,844 ordinary shares of the Company acquired at an average cost of 110 2p per share The shares had a market value of £6 7m
at 30 April 2010 The ESOT has waived the night to receive dividends on the shares 1t holds The costs of operating the ESOT are borne by the Group but

are not S|gn|f|cant

Performance Share Plan

Detalls of the Performance Share Plan ('PSP’) are given on pages 39 and 40 The costs of this scheme are charged to the income statement over the
vesting period, based on the farr value of the award at the grant date and the hkelihood of allocations vesting under the scheme In 2010, there was
a net charge In respect of the PSP of £0 5m (2009 credit of £0 9m) After deferred tax, the total charge was £02m (2009 credit of £0 7rm)

The fair value of awards granted during the year is estimated using a Black-Scholes option pricing madel with the following assurmptions share price
at grant date of 55 Sp, nil exercise price, a dividend yreld of 4 64%, volatility of 60 0%, a nisk free rate of 2 20% and an expected life of three years

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility over the previous three years The expected life used in the model s based

on the terms of the plan

Discretionary share option schemes

Details of the discretionary share option schemes are given on page 39 In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 2, Share-based payments,
the Group has not recognised any expense for these schemes as they were all granted pnor to 7 Novernber 2002

Save-As-You-Earn {SAYE) schemes

The costs of SAYE schemes are charged to the income statement over the vesting period based upon the fair value of the award at the grant date
In 2010 the charge in respect of SAYE schemes was £31,000 (2009 £01m) All SAYE schemes have now expired

Discretionary schemes SAYE
Waighted Weghted
veage average
exercise exercise PSP
Number rice (p} Number pnce {p) Number
2008/9
Qutstanding at 1 May 2008 3,592,403 1070 1,327,033 657 5,500,560
Granted - - - - 7031707
Forfeited - - {14.137) 124 -
Exercised (327384) 383 (673,397) 224  {786,86)
Expired (1.328,967) 1343 (156121 948 (1,586,055)
Qutstanding at 30 Apnl 2009 1,936,052 998 483,384 1153 10,159,351
Exercisable at 30 April 2009 1,936,052 998 222,993 1073 -
2009/10
Qutstanding at 1 May 2009 1,936,052 998 483,384 153 10,159,351
Granted - - - — 6454947
Forfeited - - (17.749) 1221 -
Exercised (303,057) 82 - - -
Expired (262.721) 976 (465,635) N0 (1,764,002)
Cutstanding at 30 Apnl 2010 1,370,274 1033 - — 14,850,296
Exercisable at 30 Aprit 2010 1,370.274 1033 — — —
Options outstanding at 30 April 2010 under discretionary schemes
Weghted
average Latest
exercise Number exercise
Yeas of gront poce(p)  of shares date
1995/2000 946 108405 08 Aug 10
2000/1 1153 1,077400 26Feb 1
2001/2 383 184469 26Feb 12

1,370,274

The weighted average exercise price during the period for options exercised over the year was 86 2p (2009 38 3p) for discretionary schemes

No options relating to the SAYE scheme were exeraised during the year
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21 Operating leases

Minimurm annual commitments under existing operating leases may be analysed by date of expiry of the lease as follows

2010 2009
£m £m

Land and buildings
Expwing in one year 41 28
Expiring between two and five years 146 220
Expiring in more than five years 16.8 170
355 418

Other

Expiring in one year 04 02
Expiring between two and five years 09 09
13 11
Total 368 429

Total munimum commitments under existing operating leases at 30 Apnl 2010 through to the end of ther respective term by year are as follows

Land and
buildings Other Total
£m £m £m

Financial year

2071 355 13 368
2012 309 06 315
2013 282 - 282
2014 241 - 241
2015 199 - 199
Thereafter 835§ - 835
2221 19 2240

£13 Om of the total minimum operating lease commutments of £222 1m relating to vacant properttes has been provided within the financial statements
and mcluded within provisions in the balance sheet

22 Pensions

The Group operates penston plans for the benefit of qualifying employees The major plans for new employees throughout the Group are all defined
contrnbution plans following the introduction of the stakeholder pension plan for UK employees in May 2002 Penston costs for defined contribution
plans were £10m (2005 £5 1m}

The Group also has a defined benefit plan for UK employees which was closed to new membersin 2001 This plan 1s a funded defined benefit plan
with trustee administered assets held separately from those of the Group A full actuarial valuation was carried out as at 30 April 2007 and updated
to 30 April 2010 by a qualified independent actuary The actuary 1s engaged by the Company to perform a valuation in accordance with 1AS 19
The principal assumptions made by the actuary were as follows

2010 2009
Rate of increase in salaries 4.60% 410%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3.60% 310%
Discount rate 550% 700%
Inflation assumption 360% 310%
Weighted average expected return on plan assets 6 60% 720%

Penstoner life expectancy assumed in the 30 Apnl 2010 update 15 based on the $1'CM| 2009’ projection model mortality tables adjusted so as to apply
a minimum annual rate of improvement of 15% a year Samples of the ages to which pensioners are assumed te live are as follows

Male Fernale

Pensioner aged 65 in 2010 871 895
Pensioner aged 65 in 2030 885 919




The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows

2010 2009
£m £m
Current service cost 03 a7
Interest cost 30 EN|
Expected return on plan assets (3.2 (41)
Past service cost - 02
Gains on curtailments and settlements - {01}
Total cost/(income) 01 (02}
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
Fair value of plan assets 559 440
Present value of defined benefit obligation (636 437)
Net (liabilrty)/asset recagmised in the balance sheet (7 03
Movements in the present value of defined benehit obligations were as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
At 1 May 437 495
Current service cost 03 o7
Interest cost 3.0 31
Natienal Insurance rebates recerved 04 02
Contributions from members 03 0s
Actuarial loss/{gam)
—experience gan (2.4) 02
—change In assumptions 201 (91)
Benefits pard {18) (1
Past service cost - oz
Curtailments and settlements - {01
63.6 437

The actuarial loss tn the year ended 30 Aprit 2010 reflects the decrease in the required market discount rate {that for AA rated corporate bonds) in the
year from 70% to 5 5% which increased the discounted value of accrued defined benefit obligations, partially offset by the adoption of shghtly reduced

pensioner life expectancy based on the S1°'CMI 2009’ projection model mortality tables

Movements in the farr value of plan assets were as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

At 1 May 440 553
Expected return on plan assets 3.2 41
Actual return on ptan assets above/{below} expected return 8.5 (167}
Contributions from sponsoring companies 13 17
National Insurance rebates received 04 02
Contnbutions from members 0.3 05
Benefits pad {18) {11)
559 440

The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date was as follows

Expected retum Fayr value

2610 2009 2010 2009

% % Em £m

Equity instruments 75 80 326 242
Bonds 50 58 .87 158
Property 75 80 44 39
Cash - - 02 01
66 72 559 440

The cverall expected return on assets 1s calculated as the weighted average of the expected retums on each indwvidual asset class The expected return
on equtties 1s the sum of inflation, the dividend yield and econormic growth net of investment expenses The return on gilts and bonds s the current

market yield on long-term gilts and bonds
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22 Pensions continued
The history of expenience adjustments 1s as follows

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
£m im £m £m £m
Farr value of scherne assets 55.9 440 553 576 522
Present value of defined benefit obligations (63 6! 437) {49 5) (52 4) {505)
(Deficst)/surplus in the scheme (77) 03 58 52 17
Expertence adjustments on scheme liabilities
Gain/(loss) (£Em) 24 o2 22 {02 {02}
Percentage of closing scheme liabilities 4% - 5% - -
Experience adjustments gn scheme assets
Gain/(toss} (Em) 85 (167) (72) 09 53
Percentage of closing scheme assets 15% (38%) (13%) 2% 10%

The cumulative actuanial losses recognised in the staternent of comprehensive income since the adoption of IFRS are £18 2m

The estimated amount of contributions currently expected to be paid by the Company to the plan during the current financial year 1s £0 8m although
this may rise following the completion of the triennial actuanal valuation of the plan at 30 Apnl 2010

23 Financial risk management

The Group's trading and financing activities expose it to various financial risks that, if left unmanaged, could adversely impact on current or future
earnings Although not necessanly mutually exclusive, these financial risks are categorised separately according to therr different generic nsk
characteristics and include market risk {foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk

It is the role af the Group treasury function to manage and monitor the Group's financial nisks and internal and external funding requirernents in
support of the Group’s corporate objectives Treasury actvities are governed by policies and procedures approved by the Board and monitored by the
Finance and Administratron Committee in particular, the Board of directors or, through delegated authority, the Finance and Administration Committee,
approves any denvative transactions Denvative transactions are only undertaken for the purposes of managing interest rate nsk and currency risk
The Group does not trade n finanaial instruments The Group mamtains treasury control systermns and procedures to monitor liquidity, currency, credit
and financial nsks The Group reports in pounds sterbing and pays dividends In pounds sterling

Market risk
The Group's activities expose it prrmarily to interest rate and currency risk Interest rate risk 1s monitored on a continuous basis and managed, where

appropnate, through the use of interest rate swaps whereas the use of forward foreign exchange contracts to manage currency risk 1s considered on
an individual non-trading transaction basis The Group is not exposed to commodity price nsk or equity price nisk as defined in IFRS 7

Interest rate risk

Management of fixed and variable rate debt

The Group has fixed and vanable rate debt in 1ssue with 58% of the drawn debt at a fixed rate as at 30 Apnil 2010 The Group's accounting policy
requires all borrowings to be held at amortised cost As a result the carrying value of fixed rate debt 15 unaffected by changes in credit condiions n
the debt markets and there 1s therefare no exposure to fair value interest rate risk The Group's debt that bears interest at a variable rate comprises all
outstanding borrowings under the senior secured credrt faciity The interest rates currently applicable to this variable rate debt are LIBOR as applicable
to the currency borrowed (US doltars or pounds sterling) plus 350bp on the extended revolver borrowings, LIBOR plus 200bp on the non-extended
revolver borrowings and LIBOR plus 175bp on the term borrowings The Group periodically utilises interest rate swap agreements to manage and
mitigate 1ts exposure to changes in mterest rates However, durning the year ended and as at 30 April 2010, the Group had no such outstanding swap
agreements The Group also may at times hold cash and cash equivalents which earn interest at a variable rate

Net variable rate debt sensitivity

At 30 April 2070, based upon the amount of vanable rate debt outstanding, the Group's pre-tax profits would change by approximately £4m for each
one percentage point change In Interest rates applicable to the variable rate debt and, after tax effects, equity would change by approximately £2m
The amount of the Group's vartable rate debt may fluctuate as a result of changes in the amount of debt outstanding under the revolving tranches
of the senior secured credit facility

Currency exchange risk
Currency exchange nisk is limited to translation nisk as there are no transactions in the ordinary course of business that take place between foreign

entitres The Group's reporting currency s the pound sterling However, a majority of our assets, labihties, revenue and costs 1s denominated in
US dollars The Group has arranged its financing such that, at 30 Apnl 2010, virtually all of its debt was denarminated in US dollars sa that there
15 @ natural partial offset between rts dollar-denorminated net assets and earnings and its dollar-denominated debt and interest expense

The Group's exposure to exchange rate movements on trading transactions 1s relatively imited All Group companies iInvoice revenues in their respective
local currency and generally incur expense and purchase assets in their local currency Consequently, the Group does not routinely hedge erther forecast
foreign exchange exposures or the impact of exchange rate movements on the transtation of overseas profits into pounds sterling Where the Group does
hedge, 1t maintans appropriate hedging documentation Foreign exchange risk on significant non-trading transactions (e g acquisitions) is considered
on an individual basis




Resultant impacts of reasonably possible changes to foreign exchange rates

Based upon the level of US operations and of the US dollar-denominated debt balance and US interest rates at 30 April 2010, a 1% change in the
US dollar-pound sterling exchange rate would have impacted our pre-tax profits by approximately £40,000 and equity by approximately £2 Om
At 30 Apnil 2010, the Group had no outstanding foreign exchange contracts

Credit nsk

The Group's principat financial assets are cash and bank balances and trade and other receivables The Group’s credit risk s primarily attributable to
its trade receivables The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables The credit risk on liquid funds and
dervative financial instruments 1s limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credst rating agencies
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk 1s presented in the following table

2010 2009

£m im

Cash and cash equivalents 548 17
Trade and other recervables 134.7 1483
189.5 1500

Substantially all of the Group's cash and cash equivalents at 30 Apnl 2010 are deposited with one large UK-based financial institution which 1s not
expected to fall

The Group has a large number of unrelated customers, serving over 580,000 dunng the financial year, and does not have any significant credit exposure
to any particular custormner Each business segment manages its own exposure to credit risk according to the economig circumstances and characteristics
of the markets they serve The Group believes that management of credit risk on a devolved basis enables it toassess and manage credit risk more
effectively However, broad principles of credit nsk management practice are observed across the Group, such as the use of credit reference agencies

and the maintenance of credit control functions

Liquidity rnisk
Liquidity nisk 1s the risk that the Group could expenience difficulties in meeting its commutrments to creditors asfinancial liabilities falt due for payment

The Group generates significant free cash flow (defined as cash flow from operations less replacement capital expenditure net of proceeds of asset
disposals interest paid and tax paid) This free cash flow is available to the Group to invest in growth capital expenditure, acquisitions and dividend
payments or to reduce debt

In addition to the strong free cash flow from normal trading activities, additional biquidity 15 available through the Croup's ABL facility At 30 Apnl 2010,
availability under this facility was $537m (£351m)

Contractual maturity analysis
Trade receivables, the principal class of non-dernvative financial asset held by the Group, are settled gross by custorners

The following table presents the Group's outstanding contractual maturity profile for its non-dertvauve financial labibities, excluding trade and other
payables which fall due within one year The analysis presented 1s based on the undiscounted contractual matunties of the Group's financial liabilities,
including any interest that will accrue, except where the Group s entitled and intends to repay a financial Lability, or part of a financial ability, before
Its contractual maturity

At 30 April 2010
Undiscounted cash flows — year ta 30 April
2011 2012 2013 Z014 2015 Thereatter Total
£m £m £m fm £m £m £m
Bank and other debt - - - 3848 - - 3848
Finance leases 3 04 - - - - 35
8 625% sentor secured notes - - - - - 1633 1633
90% senior secured notes - - - - - 3593 3593
3 04 - 3848 - 5226 9109
Interest payments 641 661 636 557 464 453 3412
672 665 636 4405 46 4 5679 1,2521

Letters of credit of £191m (2009 £21 3m) are provided and guaranteed under the ABL facility which expires in Nevember 2013

At 30 Apnl 2009

Undiscounted cash lows ~ year to 30 April

2010 2011 2012 2013 2074 Thereafter Total

£m Em Em Em £m £m fm

Bank and ather debt 17 i7 5023 - - - 5057
Finance leases 52 24 03 - - - 79
8 625% senior secured notes - - - - - 1687 1687
9 0% senior secured notes - - - - - 3712 3712
69 41 5026 - - 5399 10535

Interest payments 607 618 519 480 480 947 3651
676 659 5545 480 480 6346 14186
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23 Financial risk management continued

Capital nsk management
The Group’s abjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a gong concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and, with cogrusance of forecast future market conditions, to mamtain an optimal capital structure

In order to manage the short- and long-term capital structure, the Group adjusts the amount of ordinary dividends paid to shareholders, returns
caprtal to shareholders (for example, share buy-backs) and arranges approprate fimancing to fund business investment and mergers and acquisrtions

The Group targets leverage of between 2 to 3 times net debt to EBITDA over the economic cycle

Fair value of financial instruments
Net fair values of derivative financial instruments

At 30 April 2010, the Group’s embedded prepayment options included within its secured loan notes had a combined fair value of £5 7m (2009 £nil)

At 30 Apnil 2010, the Group had no other derivative financial instruments

Fair vatue of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

The table below provides a companson, by category of the carrying amounts and the farr values of the Group’s non-denvative financial assets and
liabilities at 30 Aprit 2010 Fair value 15 the amount at which a financial instrument coutd be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction between informed
and wilbing parties and includes accrued interest Where available, market values have been used to determine fair values of financial assets and
liabilities Where market values are not available, fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been calculated by discounting expected future cash

flows at prevailing interest and exchange rates

A130 Aprit 2010 At 30 April 2009
Book value Fair value Book value Fair valus
£m £m £m £m
Fair value of non-current borrowings
Long-term borrowings
Fair value determined based on market value
— first prionty senior secured bank debt 3848 3833 5040 4840
— 8 625% senior secured notes 1633 1646 1687 1097
— 9% senior secured potes 3593 369 2 3712 2413
9074 9171 10439 8350
Fair value determined based on observable market inputs
— finance lease obligations 04 04 27 27
Total long-term borrowings S07.8 Nn7s 1,046 6 8377
Deferred costs of rasing finance {27.1) - (159) -
8807 917.5 10307 8377
Fair value of other financial instruments held or 1ssued to finance the Group's operations
Fair value determined based on market value
Short-term borrowings - - 17 i7
Finance lease obligations due within one year 31 31 52 52
Trade and other payables 130.6 1306 1067 067
Trade and other receivables {1347} (1347) (148 3) (148 3)
Cash at bank and in hand (54 8) {54 8) (17) {17)

-1




24 Notes to the cash flow statement

a) Cash flow from operating activities

2010 2009
£m £m
Operating profit before exceptional iterns and armorttsation
— continuing cperations 685 1550
—discontinued operations - 28
685 1578
Depreciation 186 6 2011
EBITDA before exceptional stems 2551 3589
Profit on disposal of rental equipment (20) 66)
Profit on disposal of other property, plant and equipment (01) ©9)
Decrease in inventories 02 105
Decrease in trade and other recewvables 108 471
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payablas 10 {345)
Exchange differences 01 01
Other non-cash movements 05 {10}
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items and changes in rental equipment 2656 3736
b) Reconciliation to net debt
(Increase)/decrease in cash in the period {531) 04
Decrease in debt through cash flow (124 4) (217 2)
Change in net debt from cash flows (1775) {216 8)
Exchange differences (36 9} 2850
Non-cash movernents
—deferred costs of debt raising 73 28
— capital element of new finance leases 02 17
{Reduction)/increase in net debt in the period (206 9) 727
Net debt at 1 May 10359 9632
Net debt at 30 April 8290 1,0359
) Analysis of net debt
1 May Exchange Cash Non-cash 30 Apni
2009 migvement. flow maovements 2010
fm £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents (17) - {531) - (54 8)
Debt due within one year 69 032 47) Qs 31
Debt due after one year 10307 (367 (120 3) 70 8807
Total net debt 10359 (369 (1775) 75 8290
Non-cash movemnents relate to the amortisation of prepaid fees relating to debt facilities and the addition of new finance leases in the year
d) Acquisitions
2010 2009
£m £m
Cash consideration 02 03

25 Contingent liabilities

The Group 15 subject to periodic legal claims and tax audits in the ordinary course of its business, none of which is expected to have a sigmificant impact

on the Group's financial positron

The Company has guaranteed the borrowings of its subsidiary undertakings under the Group's senior secured credit and overdraft faclities At 30 April

2010 the amount borrowed under these facibities was £384 8m (2009 £505 7m) Additionally, subsidiary undertakings are able to obtamn letters of credit
under these facilities which are also guaranteed by the Company and, at 30 April 2010, letters of credit 1ssued under these arrangements totalled

£191m ($29 3m) {2009 £21 3m or $316m) Additionally the Company has guaranteed the 8 625% secand priority senior secured notes with a par value
of $250m (£163m) and 9% second priority senior secured notes with a par value of $550m {£358m), 1ssued by Ashtead Holdings PLC and Ashtead
Capital, Inc., respectively

The Company has guaranteed operating and finance lease commitments of subsidiary undertakings where the minmum lease commitment at 30 April 2010
totalted £71 5m (2009 £76 6m) in respect of land and buidings and £2 1m (2009 £5 2m) in respect of other lease rentals of which £7 4m and £2 0m
respectively is payable by substdiary undertakings in the year ending 30 Apnl 2011

The Company has guaranteed the performance by subsidiaries of certain other cbligations up to £08m (2009 £10m)

Ashtead Group pic Annual Report & Accounts 2010




notes 1o the consolidated
financial statements e

26 Capital commitments
At 30 April 2010 capital commitments in respect of purchases of rental and other equipment totalled £24 6m (2009 £11 3m), all of which had been
ordered There were no other matenal capital commitments at the year end

27 Related party transactions
The Group's key management comprise the Company's executive and non-executive directors Details of their remuneration together with their share
interests and share option awards are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report and form part of these financial statements

28 Employees
The average number of employees, including directors, during the year was as follows
2010 2009
North America 5.675 6,742
United Kingdom 1,976 2,318
7,651 9,060

29 New accounting standards
The Group has not adopted early the following pronouncements, which have been i1ssued by the IASB or the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Commuttee ('IFRIC’), but have not yet been endorsed for use in the EU

Amendments to IFRS 1, Additional exemptions for first-time adopters was issued on 23 July 2009 and s effective for annual penods beginring on

or after 1 January 2010 The amendments exempt entities using the full cost method from retrospective application of IFRSs for oil and gas assets
They also exempt entities with existing leasing contracts from reassessing the classificatian of those contracts in accordance with IFRIC 4, ‘Determining
whether an arrangement contains a lease’, when the application of local accounting requirements produced the same result As the Group has already
adopted IFRS, there will be no effect on the Group's results or financial position on adoption

Amendment to IFRS 1, Limited exernption from comparative IFRS 1 disclosure for first-time adopters was issued on 28 January 2009 and 1s effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 The amendment relieves first-time adopters of IFRSs from providing the additional disclosures
introduced by the 'Amendment to IFRS 7 - Improving disclosures about financial instruments' in March 2009 it thereby ensures that first-time adopters
benefit from the same transition provisions that ‘Amendrnents to IFRS 7' provides to current IFRS preparers As the Group has already adopted IFRS,
there will be no effect on the Group's results or financial position on adoption

iIFRS 9 ~ Finanaial instruments was issued on 12 November 2009 and 1s effective for annual peniods beginning on or after } January 2013 with early
adoptron perritted The IASB has 1ssued this standard as the first step in its project to replace 1AS 39 — Financial instruments recogrition and
measurement’ IFRS 9 has two measurement categories bemng amortised cost and fair value Allequity and debt instruments are to be measured at far
value with the exception of a debt instrument being measured at amortised cost if 1t 1s being held by the entity to collect contractuat cash flows and
the cash flows represent principal and interest The requirement to separate embedded derwatives from financial assets within hybrid contracts has
beer removed with them being classified in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value Two of the existing three fair value option criteria being
‘loans and recewvables’ and ‘held-to-matunity investments’ measured at amortised cost will become obsolete under this farr value-driven business
model The EU has currently postponed its endorsement of this standard as 1ts IFRS techrical advisory body, the European Financial Reporting Advisory
Group {'EFRAG’) has decided that more time should be taken to consider the cutput from the entire package of standards that are expected to replace
"IAS 39 — Financial instruments’ The Group 1s currently assessing the impact and expected timing of adoption of this standard on the Group's results
and financial position

IAS 24 (revised} - Related party disclosures was issued on 12 November 2009 and is effectwve for annual periods beginning on or after 1 january 2011
The standard has been revised in response to concerns that disclosure requirernents and the definition of a 'related party’ were too complex and difficult
to apply 1n practice These concerns have been addressed by providing a partial exemption for governrment related entities and providing a revised
definition of a related party The Group does not believe the adoption of this pronouncement will have a material impact on the consolidated results
or financial position of the Group

Amendment to IFRIC 14 — Prepayments of a mimmum funding requirement was 1ssued on 26 Novernber 2009 and 1s effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011 The amendment removes the unintended consequence of IFRIC 14, where 1t did not permit the recognition

of an asset for any surplus arising from voluntary prepayment of minimum funding contributions in respect to future years of service This wilt affect
companies that have prepaid (or expect to prepay) the minimum funding requirement in respect to future employee service, leading to a pension
surplus The Group does not believe the adoption of this pronouncement will have a matenal mpact on the consolidated results or financial position
of the Group

IFRIC 19 - Extingwishing financial abilities with equity instruments was issued on 26 November 2009 and s effective for annual perieds beginning on
or after 1 July 2010 This #FRIC clarifies the accounting when an entity renegotiates the terms of its debt with the result that the tiability 1s extinguished
by the debtor 1ssuing 1ts own equity instruments to the creditor {referred to as a ‘debt for equity swap’) It requires a gan or loss to be recogmised in
profit or loss when a hability s settled through the 1ssuance of the entity's own equity instruments The Group does not believe the adoption of this
pronouncement will have a material impact on the consolidated results or financial position of the Group

improvements to IFRSs (2010) was 1ssued in May 20710 and its requirements are effective overa range of dates, with the earliest effective date being

for annual pertods beginring on or after 1 January 2011 This compnises a number of amendments to IFRSs, which resulted from the IASB's annual
improvemnents project The Company does not believe the adoption of these amendments will have a material Impact on the results or financial position

of the Company




30 Parent company information
a) Balance sheet of the Company

2010 2009
Notes £m fm
Current assets
Prepayments and accrued income 02 01
Non-current assets
Investments in Group companies & 363.7 3637
Deferred tax asset 0.2 -
3639 3637
Total assets 3641 3638
Current Liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings G} 827 720
Accruals and deferred income 31 12
Total liabilities 858 732
Equity
Share capital b} 553 553
Share premium account b} 36 36
Capital redemption reserve b} 09 09
Non-distributable reserve &) 90.7 907
Own shares held by the Company ) (3371) (331}
Owin shares held through the ESQT () (53) 63)
Retained reserves () 167 2 1795
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 2783 2906
3641 3638

Total babilities and equity

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 16 june 2010

e&*\\&-&———s C RAA

Geoff Drabble lan Robson
Chief executive Finance director
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30 Parent company information continued
b) Statement of changes in equity of the Company

Share Capital Naon- shc::::
Share prermism redemption dstributable Treasury held by Retained
capital account reserve reserve stock E50T reserves Total
£m £m £m £m im £m £m £m
At 30 Apnil 2008 562 36 - Q07 (233) (70} 2010 3212
Totat comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - (10) (10)
Shares 1ssued - - - - 05 - 03) 02
Dividends paid - - - - - - (129) (129)
Share-based payments - - - - - - {08) (o8}
Vesting of share awards - - - - - 1 1) -
Own shares purchased - - - - (157) (04) - (167)
Cancellauon of shares held by the Company {09) - 09 - 54 - {54) -
At 30 Apnil 2009 553 36 09 507 337) 63) 1795 2906
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - - -
Divdends paid - - - - - - (128} (128)
Share-based payments - - - - - - 05 05
At 30 April 2010 553 36 09 90 7 (3371) (63) 167 2 2783
¢) Cash flow statement of the Company
2010 2009
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 0 142 289
Fiancing costs paid (14) —
Net cash from operating activities 128 289
Cash flows from financing activities
Redemption of loans - 1)
Purchase of own shares by the Company - (157)
Purchase of own shares by the ESOT - (04)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares - 02
Dwvidends paid 12 8) (129)
Net cash used in financing activities 12 8) (289)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

d) Accounting policies

The Company financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the accounting policies set out in note 1 above, supplemented by the policy

an investments set out below

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any necessary provision for impairment in the parent company balance sheet Where
an nvestment in a subsidiary 1s transferred to another subsidiary, any uplift in the value at which it 1s transferred over its carrying value s treated as

a revaluation of the investment prior to the transfer and 1s credited to the revaluation reserve

€) Income statement

Ashtead Group plc has not presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The amount of the loss

for the financial year dealt with in the accounts of Ashtead Group plc s £mil (2009 £10m)
f) Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings

2010 2009
£m £m

Due within one year
Ashtead Holdings PLC 827 n7
Ashtead Plant Hire Company Limited - 603
827 720




g) Investments

Shares w3 Group Lompanies

2010 2009

Em £

At 30 Apnl 2009 and 2010 3637 3637
The Company’s principal subsidiaries are

Country of Principal country i which

Name ncorporation  subsihary undertzking operates

Ashtead Holdings PLC England United Kingdom

Sunbelt Rentals, Inc. USA USA

Ashtead Plant Hire Company Limited England Urited Kingdom

Ashtead Caprtal, inc. usA USA

Ashtead Financing Limited England United Kingdom

The tssued share capital (all of which comprises ordinary shares) of subsidianies 1s 100% owned by the Company or by subsidiary undertakings and all
subsidiaries are consolidated The principal actvity of Ashtead Heldings PLC is an investrment holding company while Ashtead Capital, Inc and Ashtead
Finanang Limited are finance companies The pnnapal activity of each other subsidiary undertaking bisted above 1s equipment rental Ashtead Group plc
owns all the issued share capital of Ashtead Holdings PLC which in turn holds all of the other subsidiaries isted above except for Sunbelt Rentals, Inc
which Ashtead Holdings PLC owns indirectly through ancther subsidiary undertaking

h) Financial instruments
The book value and fair value of the Company's financial instruments are not materially different

i) Notes to the Company cash flow statement
Cash flow from operating activities

2070 2009

£m fm

Operating loss - -
Depreciation 01 Q1
EBITDA 0.1 01
(Increase)/decrease in recevables (01) 10
Increase/(decrease) in payables 02 {23)
Increase in intercompany payable 138 311
Other non-cash movernent 05 (10)
Net cash inflow from operations before exceptional items 142 289
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ten year history

RS UK GAAP
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 7003 2002 2001
In Em
Income statement
Revenue * 836.8 10735 1,0478 8961 €380 5237 5003 5395 5837 5520
Operating costs * (5817) (7174) (6841) (585 8) (413 3) (354 2) (3533) (3894) (398 6) (345 3)
EBITDA * 2551 3561 3637 3103 2247 1695 1470 1501 1851 2067
Depreciation (186 6) {201 1) (1766) (159 8) {1136} {102 4) {102 8) (110) {1178) {(17g)
Qperating profit * 685 1550 1871 1505 ma 671 442 391 673 891
Interest * (63 5) (676) {748) (691) {436) {447) (366) {409) {491) (s07)
Pre-tax profit/(loss) * 50 874 112 3 814 675 24 76 e 182 384
Operating profit 660 684 1845 1011 1245 671 162 06 725 682
Pre-tax profit/{loss) 48 08 1097 {36 5) 817 322 (331) (422) (15 5) 1
Cash flow
Cash flow from operations
before exceptional items
and changes inrental fleet 2656 3736 3564 3193 2152 1648 1400 1573 1942 1730
Total cash generated before
exceptional costs and M&A 199 2 1660 148 203 (52) 87 566 389 (29 4) {26 3}
Balance sheet ‘
Capital expenditure 634 2383 3310 2902 2202 1384 723 855 138 2377 ‘
Book cost of ‘
rental equipment 17013 1,798 2 15284 1,4341 9219 8002 8139 9458 a9 962 8
Shareholders' funds 500 3 5260 4403 3967 2583 1099 1318 1594 1929 2021
In pence
Dividend per share 29 2575p 25p 165p 150p Nl Nil Nil 350p 350p
Earnings per share 04p 12 5p 14 2p 08p 13 5p 52p (99p) {9 5p) 1p 65p
Underlying earnings
per share 0.2p 119 148p 103p 1i3p 32p {07p} (0 4p) 137p 92p
In percent
EBITDA margin * 305% 332% 347% 346% 352% 324% 294% 278% 317% 374%
Operating profit rmargmn * 82% 14 4% 179% 168% 174% 129% 88% 72% 115% 161%
Pre-tax profit/(loss) margn *  0.6% 81% 107% 91% 10 6% 48% 15% (03%) 31% 70%
People
Employees at year end 7,218 8162 9,594 10,077 6,465 5935 5833 6,078 6,545 6,043
Locations ‘
Stores at year end 498 520 635 659 413 412 428 449 463 443

The figures for the years ended 30 Apel 2005 and later are reported i accordance with IFRS Figures for 2004 and prior are reported under UK GAAP and have not been restated in accordance with IFRS
+ Before exceptional items, amortisation and fawr value remeasurements EBITDA aperaung profrt and pre-tax profit/(loss} are stated before exceptional iterns but have been adjusted to allocate the
impact of the US accounting 1ssues and the change in self-insurance esumauon methad reported in 2003 to the years to which they relate and to reflect the BET USA lease adjustment reported in
2002 1n 2001 The directors believe these adjustments improve comparability between periods
* Shareholders funds for the years up to 30 April 2003 were restated in 2003/4 to reflect shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Trust as a deduction from sharcholders funds in accardance

with UITF 38
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